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I.Meeting Agenda

1. Call to the order

. Chairman remarks

3. Management Presentation
3.1. 2022 Business Report
3.2. 2022 Audit Committee’s Review Report
3.3 2022 Profit Distribution-Cash dividends

N

4. Proposals
4.1. Adoption of the 2022 Business Report and Financial Statement
4.2. Adoption of the Proposal for Distribution of 2022 Profit

5. Discussion
5.1. Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Company
5.2. Amendment to the Ordinances of Shareholders Meeting of the Company
5.3. Amendment to Procedure for the Election of Directors

6. Elections
6.1. The Election of all Directors

7. Other Matters
7.1. Proposal of Release the Prohibition on Directors from Participation in Competitive Business

8. Extraordinary Motions

9. Adjournment



Management Presentation

Report No. 1 (Proposed by the board of directors)

Subject: 2022 Business Report

Explanation: 2022 Business Report is as attached, APPENDIX 1.

Report No. 2 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: 2022 Audit Committee’s Review Report
Explanation: 2022 Audit Committee’s Review Report is as attached, APPENDIX 2.

Report No. 3 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: The Status of 2022 Profit Distribution-Cash Dividends
Explanation:

1. According to Article 28 of Articles of Incorporation, the Company authorizes the
distributable dividends and dividends in whole or in part may be paid in cash after a
resolution has been adopted by the board of directors and in addition thereto a report of
such distribution shall be submitted to the shareholders meeting.

2. The 2022 retained surplus of the Company is NTD 37,876,221. The proposed cash
dividends to shareholders are NTD 19,140,774,as NTD 0.175 per share, by a resolution of
the board of Directors. The cash dividend amount to each shareholder is distributed up to
a dollar. Less than a dollar shall be allocated to other income of the Company. It is
authorized to the chairman of the board to specify ex-dividend date, payment date and other
matters.

Proposals
Proposals No. 1 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: Adoption of 2022 business report and financial statement

Explaination:
1. 2022 business report and financial statement were completed
2. Above financial statement has been duly audited by CPA Qian-yu, Liu and CPA Yu-
kuan, Lin of PwC Taiwan. It has been examined and determined to be correct and
accurate by the undersigned.
3. 2022 business report and financial statement are as attached, APPENDIX 1, 3, and 4.
Resolution:

Proposal No. 2 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: Adoption of 2022 Profit Distribution
Explaination:
1. The 2022 retained surplus of the Company is NTD 37,876,221. The proposed cash
dividends to shareholders are NTD 19,140,774,as NTD 0.175 per share, by a
resolution of the board of Directors.
2. 2022 Profit Distribution Table is as attached, APPENDIX 5.
Resolution:

. Discussions

Discussion No. 1 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Company
Explaination:
1. For more possibility convening shareholders meeting, proposed to amend Articles of
Incorporation regarding shareholders meeting matters under Paragraph 1 of Article
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172-2 of the Company Act and Paragraph 3 of Article 44-9 of Regulations Governing
the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies.
2. The Comparison Table of the Amendments to Articles of Incorporation of the
Company is as attached, APPENDIX 6.
Resolution:

Discussion No. 2 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: Amend to the Ordinances of Shareholders Meeting

Explaination:
1. To comply with Articles of Incorporation of the Company that convening shareholders
meeting types may be in a virtual meeting, amend to relevant Articles of the
Ordinances of Shareholders Meeting.
2. The Comparison Table of the Amendments to the Ordinances of Shareholders Meeting
is as attached, APPENDIX 7.
Resolution:

Discussion No. 3 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: Amendment to Procedure for the Election of Directors
Explaination:
1.Amend relevant Rules of Procedure for the Election of Directors according to Public
Announcement No. Securities-TPEX-Supervision-10900582661 of the Taipei
Exchange.1
2.The Comparison Table of the Amendments to Procedure for the Election of Directors is
as attached, APPENDIX 8.
Resolution:

V. Elections
Election No. 1 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: the Election of all Directors
Explaination:
1.The company is responsible for identifying and evaluating nominees for director and
supervisor seats, and recommending to the Board a slate of nominees for the Directors and
Supervisors election. The directors of the 10th board will end on May 28th, 2023. The
Company proposes to elect all directors in the general shareholders meeting. According to
the Company Act, in case no election of new directors is effected after expiration of the
term of office of existing directors, the term of office of out-going directors shall be
extended until the time new directors have been elected and assumed their office.
2.The shareholders meeting shall elect 7 new directors (including 3 independent directors).
Their three-year term will start from May 29th, 2023 and conclude on May 28th, 2026.
3.The candidates nomination system is adopted for election of the directors (including
independent directors) of the Company. The shareholders shall elect the directors from
among the nominees listed in the roster of director candidates. The information on
candidates was resolved by the board on April 17th, 2023 as attached, APPENDIX 9.
4.The reason to nominate Dr. Lee, who is over three consecutive terms as an independent
director:
Dr. Lee Shih-ren is excellent in the chemistry field and has abundant experiences in
biotechnology investment. He has high international attitudes and business management
experience since he has been a director or a manager of many cross country investment
companies and representatives of many biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies in
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Taiwan. His experiences provide an important contribution toward the operation of the
board of the directors and of the company. During his terms, he performed his duty to
establish and supervise the company's internal control system and reviewed financial
reports. His independent and objective supervision of the company's operations has not
been affected by the length of his term. Therefore, the Company proposed Dr. Lee Shih-
ren to be a candidate of the independent directors.

Resolution:

VI. Other Matters
No. 1 (Proposed by the board of directors)
Subject: Release the Prohibition on Directors and its Representatives from Participation in
Competitive Business.
Explaination:
1.Elections of all directors in a general shareholders meeting in 2023.
2.The Company has expanded the business scope gradually, it is possible the
nominated directors are directors or managers in other companies with similar
business scope. The above conditions are good for the Company’s multi-business,
and international, professional development without restrictions. The Company
proposes to release the prohibition on new directors and its representatives without
a violation of Article 209 of the Company Act.
3.Non-Competition Information on Director candidates is attached, APPENDIX 10.
The Company proposes to release the prohibition after the shareholders meeting.
Resolution:

VII. Extraordinary Motions
VIII. Appendices

IX. Attachments



Appendix 1
Letter to Shareholders March 10, 2023

Dear Shareholders,

1. 2022 Annual Report
()Implementation results of the business plan
The global supply chain underwent further evolution in 2022 due to the
pandemic and the ongoing war between Russia and Ukraine, which led
to frequent shortages of medicine. Despite the challenges, we
persevered through hardships and obstacles.

Geopolitical shifts have impacted market functioning, with sanctions
disrupting the supply chain for raw materials, resulting in soaring
prices. Alongside the price increases, shipping schedules have become
difficult to comprehend. To compensate for the shortage of original
and imported medicine in Taiwan, we worked tirelessly to produce
during this turbulent time. All employees, whether in production or
business, collaborated to solve problems and deliver products to
customers as quickly as possible, leading to consistent performance
and moderate growth. We are grateful to our dedicated and hardworking
team members.

On the one hand, research and development of products faced obstacles
due to the pandemic, while on the other hand, they had to respond to
unforeseen circumstances. The US-developed PMR, which treats
intermittent claudication and prevents secondary strokes, was
challenging to enroll and operate logistically, given the rising number
of Covid-19 cases in early 2022. However, thanks to the efforts of all
clinical department colleagues, the pharmacokinetic test following the
prescription modification was completed, and the results met
expectations. The pivotal trial will be re-conducted in 2023 after
dosage adjustments.

GX17, a drug for rare disease with the indication of Antiphospholipid
syndrome (APS), completed its IND submission in 2022. The US FDA
issued a “Study May Proceed” letter, and clinical trial preparations are
underway. Furthermore, a multinational patent application for this
indication and crystal form is actively in progress.

NaviFUS Corporation's innovative medical device NF02, designed to
care for the health of Taiwanese people, was evaluated in mid-2022. In
the prioritization of the project, the Alzheimer's disease program has
been suspended to participate in a multinational, multi-center clinical
trial designed by Stanford and Harvard BWH for the indication of
epilepsy. With the trial plan submitted to the Hospital Ethics
Committee, the trial is set to begin in H1 2023.

Genovate invested in the innovative medical device research and
development company NaviFUS Corporation, whose Model 101
Neuronavigation-guided focused ultrasound system was shortlisted for
the 2022 Edison Award and won the Gold Prize for Outpatient
Treatment in the Science & Medical Field. It beat medical giants



Abbott and Spark Medical, with a 4.4 billion USD market cap, bringing
honor to Taiwan. In mid-2022, the company was registered on the
emerging stock market, and it can be described as a rising star with
international accreditation.

Uni Pharma Co., Ltd., which had been reinvesting, implemented a plan
to streamline the Hsinchu branch in 2022, substantially reducing
operating expenses and contributing to the practice of balancing the
books. In the United States and Taiwan, the FDA approved the
ultrasonic 3D surgical needle tracking system (NaviRFA), developed
in collaboration with NaviFUS Corporation. Currently, a sales strategy
Is being developed and gradually implemented. Furthermore, the
review of NaviRFA+DC, a clinical trial proposal for treating liver
cancer with dendritic cell (DC) immunotherapy, was completed by the
clinical trial center. It has been submitted to the CDE and is awaiting
official review in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the
Application or Use of Specific Medical Techniques or Examinations,
or Medical Devices.”

Despite the unpredictability of the pandemic, our factory has continued
to implement software and hardware upgrades, such as the installation
of tablet visual inspection machines, fluid bed dryers, and PTP banding
machines. These upgrades have alleviated operational bottlenecks,
improved quality and efficiency, and lowered production costs. In
addition, to meet the increasingly stringent PIC/S GMP regulations, we
have expanded our staff and fortified our quality control procedures.

Despite obstacles such as insecurity in external raw material supplies,
a shortage of medications, and the pandemic, we have persevered as a
team. Two examples of our specialty generic drugs, which require high
technical expertise, are the “Intubation Big Three” (Genso Injection,
Winbest Injection, and Rocuron Injection) and the “Heart-
Resuscitation Double” (Gendobu Injection and Angidil Injection).
Genovate's commitment to high-quality production and supply has
fulfilled our business philosophy of “caring for the health of Taiwanese
people” by providing timely medical support for critically ill patients
affected by medication shortages.

Throughout all these challenges, our entire factory has worked
collaboratively to address any issues that arise.

(2)Budget Implementation Status
As per the “Regulations Governing the Publication of Financial
Forecasts of Public Companies,” the company has not released any
public financial projections for the fiscal year 2022. Therefore, this
particular item is not applicable.

(3)Financial Revenue and Expenditure
In the fiscal year 2022, the consolidated revenue was NT$439 million,
indicating a growth of NT$4.51 million from the previous year and an
annual growth rate of 1.04%. The primary factor driving this growth
was the increase in sales of niche generics. However, the company
reported a net loss after taxes of NT$12.32 million this year, which
was a decrease of NT$12.69 million from last year and equated to a
loss of NT$0.11 per share. The decline in profits for this year was



primarily due to the increase in operating expenses compared to the
previous year, along with the profit-seeking enterprise income tax for

this year's equity sale.

Financial Revenue and Expenditure:

Unit: NT$ thousands

Item 2022 2021
Operating revenue 438,759 434,254
Operating costs 283,889 284,500
Operating margin 154,870 149,754
Operating expenses 168,760 150,920
Operating loss (13,890) (1,166)
Non-operating revenue 4,889 4,734
Net income (net loss) after tax (12,323) 372
Profitability:

Item 2022 2021
Return on assets (%) (0.78) 0.02
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) (0.88) 0.02
%{E?ga(tol/on)g income to paid-in capital (1.26) (0.10)
ﬁ]psgztiItZ? rlgtci%n&)t))efore tax to paid (0.82) 0.32
Net profit ratio (%) (2.80) 0.08
Earnings per share (0.11) 0.00

(4)Research and Development

Genovate's new drug development plan is gradually expanding

internationally, leveraging the combined advantages of professionals

and alliances.

1. PMR Antithrombotics:
PMR's main component is Cilostazol, which has an antiplatelet and
vasodilation effect and can improve the symptoms of intermittent
claudication and prevent a second stroke. The primary ingredient in
this product is Cilostazol, which inhibits platelet aggregation and
vasodilation, and thereby alleviates symptoms of intermittent
claudication and prevents a second stroke. Existing instant-release
dosage forms on the market release many ingredients within a few
hours, leading to side effects such as headaches and palpitations that
discourage patients from taking them.
To overcome this issue, PMR utilizes a new extended-release
technology that ensures the active ingredients are accessible within
24 hours, reaching a concentration level required for treatment and
reducing the incidence rate and severity of side effects. This
decreases the patient's fear of medication and enhances the
treatment's overall efficacy.



Several clinical evaluation tasks assigned by the US FDA during the
pre-NDA  meeting are currently being completed. The
pharmacokinetic test was conducted in 2022, after finalizing the
prescription revision, and the results were as anticipated. After an
internal review of multiple research and development data, the dose
will be adjusted and retested in 2023.

. GX17 immunomodulatory drugs:

This development item is related to the originally approved
ingredient "active enantiomer,” and it is a new 505(b)(2) drug with
a new dosage.

Hydroxychloroquine, the active ingredient in GX17, is used to treat
systemic lupus erythematosus and rheumatoid arthritis. Since this
drug's structure contains a stereocenter, it generates two distinct
optical isomers with distinct pharmacokinetic characteristics in vivo.
According to the results of animal testing, GX17 is anticipated to
be safer for long-term medication patients. The development of
GX17 is predicated on improved preparation methodology, followed
by the development of new drugs for preparations and clinical
design indications.

The FDA has responded to the development of the Antiphospholipid
Syndrome indication (APS), deeming the design of the initial human
pharmacokinetic test to be fair, and the IND submission was
finalized in 2022. The US FDA has issued a "Study May Proceed
Letter,” and planning for clinical trials is currently underway.
Additionally, multi-country patent applications for the APS utility
patent and the GX17 crystal form patent are being actively crafted.
. NFO2 Epilepsy Treatment Device:

The blood-brain barrier presents a major challenge for the treatment
of brain disorders, as it impedes the vast majority of medications
from crossing the brain's blood vessels. However, the NaviFUS®
Model 101 Neuronavigation-guided focused ultrasound equipment,
developed by the reinvestment business NaviFUS Corporation, has
shown promising results in overcoming this obstacle. By emitting
signals to blood vessels close to brain lesion tissue through the skull
from outside the body, this equipment induces the formation of
microbubbles within the blood vessels via its mechanical energy. As
a result of the deformation and vibration that compress the blood
vessel wall, the blood-brain barrier becomes temporarily permeable,
enabling up to ten times more efficient drug penetration from the
blood vessel into the lesion area. This breakthrough is expected to
significantly enhance the efficacy of treatments for brain diseases.
In addition, NaviFUS employs a surgical navigation system to
accurately direct the ultrasound beam to the target area.

Genovate and NaviFUS established a holding company in another
country to invest in Australia and launch a research and development
venture there. The goal was to take advantage of Melbourne's
neuromedical research and development center, as well as the
favorable local tax and regulatory environment, to plan Alzheimer's
disease trials using an Academic-Industry approach. The Human
Research Ethics Committees of the Australia Therapeutic Goods
Administration approved the clinical study application in August
2020, but the start of the project was delayed due to the epidemic.



After reassessing priorities in 2022, it was decided to discontinue
the Alzheimer's Project and participate in a multinational, multi-
center clinical trial jointly established by Stanford and Harvard
BWH, with epilepsy as the target indication. The system's
components have been assembled and tested, and the epilepsy trial
proposal has been submitted to the Hospital Ethics Committee. The
trial is expected to commence in the first half of 2023.

2. 2023 Business Plan
(1)Operating principle

1.

Invest in factory software and hardware, accelerate the installation
of automated machinery and tools, enhance PIC/S GMP production
quality, expand production capacity, pursue high-profit OEM
products via foreign certification (e.g., US FDA, Japan PMDA), and
expand the regional market while evaluating the viability of a new
plant.

. Diversify into other areas of the biomedical industry, such as

innovative medical devices, pet cancer screening, and cytotherapy,
through reinvestment and strategic alliances.

. Implement the innovative R&D model “Co-Investment, Joint

Development” to develop “Niche-in-Class drugs” and “505(b)(2)
innovative dosage forms” for new drugs. By employing the strategy
of “vertical integration, each excelling in its strengths,” we aim to
maximize the value of new pharmaceuticals.

. Deepen the reinvestment business by leveraging Genovate's

advantages and experience to support other reinvestment firms,
strengthen strategic partnerships, and create mutually beneficial
outcomes.

. Pursue a conglomerate organizational architecture with niche

products and strategic partners in the US and Japan for cooperative
investments and product development. Additionally, explore
international markets.

. Improve our IR/PR to increase the confidence of professional

institutions in investing in the biotechnology industry and enhance
our company's public image

(2)Business Objective—projected sales volume and its basis
The business objective for 2023 will be raised gradually in accordance
with the target approved by the board of directors. All business plans
are realistically implemented and based on historical production and
sales data, device lifecycles, and anticipated external environmental
change.

(3)Production and Marketing Policies

1.

Establish a flexible procurement system and conduct an exhaustive
search for raw material suppliers in order to reduce or equalize raw
material procurement expenses.

. Invest in new automated machinery and tools with larger batch sizes

to enhance the production process with automation. This will
increase productivity, reduce total product costs, and maximize
product profits.

. Prepare for the PIC/S GMP follow-up inspection, enhance

production technology, and explore opportunities with domestic and
international pharmaceutical OEMs to expand production capacity.



4. Develop or acquire products that can complement Genovate's own
products in the short term, enhance product lines in professional
fields, remove sales barriers, and increase revenue.

5. Continue expanding the market for own-brand new drugs such as
Mycocep. Use the original manufacturer's model to connect with
groups such as patient and medical associations, and develop large-
scale marketing plans for hospitals in order to achieve
breakthroughs and drug listing.

6. Integrate internal and external R&D efforts, implement project
management, shorten product launch times, and demonstrate
competitive advantages.

3. Future Development Strategy

(1)To achieve the highest quality in PIC/S GMP manufacturing
capabilities, offer OEM/ODM services for regional markets, increase
production efficiency, and pave the way for international product sales,
itis crucial to continuously improve production software and hardware.
Additionally, the feasibility of constructing an additional plant must
be evaluated.

(2)By combining the development of 505(b)(2) new drugs (PMR and GX17)
in the United States with a regional alliance of Niche-in-class new
drugs (DBPR108), as well as the clinical development of the innovative
medical device NaviFus in Australia, we can strengthen our research
and development capabilities and establish our brand.

(3)Collaborating with reinvestment strategic alliance partners (NaviFus,
Unipharm, etc.), we can actively promote the development of new drugs,
innovative medical devices, and cell therapy, intersect with precision
medicine, and enhance Genovate's global competitiveness.

4. The effects of the external competitive, regulatory, and overall
business environment
Despite restrictions on people's activities in 2022, essential medical
supplies have not been affected. In Taiwan's domestic market, generic
drugs dominate the output value of the pharmaceutical industry. The slow
increase in revenue is attributed to the limited number of export sales.
Favorable policies have encouraged many manufacturers to invest in the
development of new drugs. However, achieving mainstream production
value remains a challenge, and there is still room for growth.

The “Act for the Development of Biotech and Pharmaceutical Industry”
was amended in late 2021 to include emerging projects such as new
dosage medications, regenerative medicine, digital health, and innovative
technology platforms. These projects combine the advantages of Taiwan's
medical technology and information technology to develop more precise
treatments. Biotechnology and pharmaceutical products for diagnosis and
prevention, along with newly established Contract Development and
Manufacturing Organization (CDMOQO) businesses, will contribute to the
expansion of Taiwan's biotechnology and pharmaceutical manufacturing
capabilities.

As of July 2022, 166 companies and 438 products have passed the
qualification test for biotechnology and pharmaceutical firms developing
new treatments and medications according to the regulations. The
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investment deduction for tax incentives includes R&D, machinery and
equipment, shareholder investment, and low-tax incentives such as
executive compensation and technology invested as capital stock.

The business climate is generally positive. The structure of health
insurance benefits limits the majority of domestic pharmaceutical
companies, causing them to struggle in the competitive bidding process,
which reduces their profits. They can only produce niche products by
leveraging upstream, midstream, and downstream advantages.
Biotechnology can become a world-class industry by collaborating with
government resources and private investment, overcoming market
barriers, and entering the global market.

Furthermore, the COVID-19 pandemic has affected the entire world,
posing a risk to the biotechnology industry's supply chain. Experts in
various digital technology fields must collaborate to treat, prevent, and
predict diseases. The pandemic has also presented a formidable challenge:
how to generate the energy necessary for drug production.

Genovate has been deeply rooted in Taiwan for many years, and has now
reached its 30s. It has witnessed the development and growth of Taiwan's
biotech and pharmaceutical industry, as well as the rise and fall of various
manufacturers. Genovate knows well that the only way to survive is to
focus on their own business, innovate in research and development, and
implement practical measures. Genovate's mission has always been to
“develop new drugs and care for the health of the people,” and they have
established a risk-balanced product line to ensure stable operation. In
today's rapidly changing times, they are expanding their reach through
strategic investments and partnerships, venturing into innovative medical
devices, macromolecular drugs, and cell therapy fields. We adopt a
collaborative development model, focusing on related diseases such as
cardiovascular, metabolism, central nervous system, and immune
regulation, and they seek international regulatory or tax advantages with
agility and flexibility, participate in large international research and
development projects, synchronize with the world, expand their
macroscopic vision, lay out globally, enhance company value, create
profits, share with shareholders, and contribute to Taiwan's biotech and
pharmaceutical industry.

Best wishes to Genovate and Taiwan's biotechnology and pharmaceutical
industries!

We hope that all shareholders will continue to support and encourage
Genovate and provide guidance and supervision. Here's wishing all
shareholders good health and all the best in everything they do.
Sincerely,

Chen, Jen

Chairman

Genovate Biotechnology CO., LTD.
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Appendix 2

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared and submitted to the undersigned, Audit
Committee of Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD. Business Report, Consolidated
Financial Statements and Dividend Distribution proposal in Year 2022. The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been duly audited by Certified Public
Accountants of PwC Taiwan. The above Business Report, Consolidated Financial
Statements and Dividend Distribution proposal have been examined and determined
to be correct and accurate by the undersigned. This Report is duly submitted in
accordance with Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of

the Company Act.

Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD

The Audit Committee Convener Liu, Ke-Yi

March 10, 2023
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Appendix 3

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
and the subsidiary (the “Group”) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,

and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC

Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Group’s 2022 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Key audit matter for the Group’s 2022 consolidated financial statements is stated as follows:

Recognition of sales revenue

Description

Given the sales revenue has a high degree of inherent risk and is material to the financial statements, we
consider the recognition of sales revenue as a key audit matter. Refer to Note 4(27) for accounting

policies on operating revenue recognition, and Note 6(21) for details of operating revenue.

How our audit addressed the matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the above key audit matter included:

1. Tested the design and implementation effectiveness of the internal control system of sales
transactions.
Evaluated the reasonableness of the trade terms and credit line to the customers.

3. Confirmed the existence of the revenue and the accuracy of revenue recognition by performing
substantive tests on sales transactions, selecting and verifying the transaction documents in relation
to order information and shipping records, and related vouchers in relation to sales returns and

discounts occurring subsequent to the reporting period.
Other matter — Parent company only financial reports

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only financial statements
of Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd. as at and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or

to cease operations, or has no realisti[¢ dternai ve bit to dosao

Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
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obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities of the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Liu, Chien-Yu Lin, Yu-Kuan
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 10, 2023

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use
by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 194,165 13 % 198,441 13
1110 Financial assets at fair value through 6(2)

profit or loss - current 20,000 1 13,000 1
1136 Current financial assets at amortised  6(4)

cost 282,880 18 177,980 12
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(5) 10,625 1 8,652 1
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(5) 83,880 5 84,282 5
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties  6(5) and 7 1,621 - 1,454 -
1200 Other receivables 7 27,768 2 774 -
130X Inventories 6(6) 145,861 9 139,943 9
1410 Prepayments 7 15,077 1 10,404 1
11XX Total current assets 781,877 50 634,930 42

Non-current assets

1517 Financial assets at fair value through 6(3) and 7

other comprehensive income - non-

current 334,861 22 423,327 28
1550 Investments accounted for using 6(7)

equity method 16,735 1 16,193 1
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8) 401,542 26 408,880 27
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9) 1,746 - 17 -
1760 Investment property - net 6(11) 21,662 1 21,662 1
1780 Intangible assets 6(12) 796 - 1,491 -
1900 Other non-current assets 5,209 - 8,312 1
15XX Total non-current assets 782,551 50 880,582 58
1XXX Total assets $ 1,564,428 100 $ 1,515,512 100

(Continued)
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GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
2130 Contract liabilities - current 6(21) and 7 4,734 1 4,026 -
2150 Notes payable 111 - 119 -
2170 Accounts payable 6(13) 45,798 3 34,881 3
2200 Other payables 6(14) 55,125 4 47,904 3
2220 Other payables - related parties 6(14) and 7 1,898 - - -
2230 Current income tax liabilities 3,271 - 3,398 -
2280 Lease liabilities - current 1,253 - 742 -
2399 Other current liabilities, others 19,651 1 19,543 1
21XX Total current liabilities 131,841 9 110,613 7
Non-current liabilities
2580 Non-current lease liabilities 585 - 91 -
2600 Other non-current liabilities 6(15) 21,175 1 25,942 2
25XX Total non-current liabilities 21,760 1 26,033 2
2XXX Total Liabilities 153,601 10 136,646 9
Equity attributable to owners of the
parent
Share capital 6(17)
3110 Common stock 1,093,758 70 1,100,038 72
Capital surplus 6(18)
3200 Capital surplus 210,512 13 208,929 14
Retained earnings 6(19)
3310 Legal reserve 61,483 4 56,748 4
3320 Special reserve 35,043 - -
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 105,649 7 111,226 7
Other equity interest 6(20)
3400 Other equity interest 95,618) ( 6) ( 35,043) ( 2)
3500  Treasury stocks 6(17) - - ( 63,032) ( 4)
31XX Equity attributable to owners of
the parent 1,410,827 90 1,378,866 91
3XXX Total equity 1,410,827 90 1,378,866 91
Significant contingent liabilities and 9
unrecognised contract commitments
Significant events after the balance 11
sheet date
3X2X Total liabilities and equity 1,564,428 100 § 1,515,512 100
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GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings (losses) per share amounts)

Year ended December 31
2022 2021
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000  Sales revenue 6(21) and 7 $ 438,759 100 $ 434,254 100
5000  Operating costs 6(6)(12)(22)(23) ( 283,889) ( 65) ( 284,500) ( 65)
5900 Net operating margin 154,870 35 149,754 35
Operating expenses 6(5)(8)(12)(15)(22)
(23)and 7
6100 Selling expenses ( 64,319) ( 14) ( 57,468) ( 13)
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 42,566) ( 10) ( 38,022) ( 9)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 61,878) ( 14) ( 55,427) ( 13)
6450 Expected credit impairment gain 12(2)
(loss) 3 - ( 3) -
6000 Total operating expenses ( 168,760) ( 38) ( 150,920) ( 35)
6900  Operating loss ( 13,890) ( 3) ( 1,166) -
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income 6(24) 2,673 1 1,605 -
7010 Other income 6(10)(11)(25) 1,653 - 3,445 1
7020 Other gains and losses 6(26) 558 - ( 200) -
7050 Finance costs 6(27) ( 281) - ( 252) -
7060 Share of profit of associates and 6(7)
joint ventures accounted for using
equity method 286 - 136 -
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses 4,889 1 4,734 1
7900  Profit (loss) before income tax ( 9,001) ( 2) 3,568 1
7950 Income tax expense 6(28) ( 3,322) ( 1) ( 3,196) ( 1)
8200  Profit (loss) for the year (% 12,323) ( 3) $ 372 -
Other comprehensive income
Components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
8311 Loss on remeasurements of defined  6(15)
benefit plans ($ 2,324) ( 1) ($ 4,193) ( 1)
8316 Unrealised gains (losses) from 6(3)(20)
investments in equity instruments
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 33,467 8 376 -
Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Financial statements translation 6(20)
differences of foreign operations 256 - ( 471) -
8300  Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year $ 31,399 7 ($ 4,288) ( 1)
8500  Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year $ 19,076 4 ($ 3,916) ( 1)
Profit attributable to:
8610 Owners of the parent ($ 12,323) ( 3) $ 372 -
Comprehensive income attributable to:
8710 Owners of the parent $ 19,076 4 (3 3,916) ( 1)
Earnings (losses) per share 6(29)
9750 Basic ($ 0.1 $ -
9850 Diluted ($ 0.1 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

20



*SJUOUIQIE)S [RIOUBUI] PA)EPI[OSUOD 9531} Jo jied [e1Sojur ue o1e sojou Surkuedwoooe oy

LT8OIP° 1§ - § (55666 $) (€9 $)  6v9°s0l § evose  § €8y 19 § zIsore  $ 8SLE60° T
65 - - - - - - 65 - (819
- - (86T 76 ) - 86T 16 - - - -
(00)(£)9
00L°T1 - - - N N N 00L°T1 - (919
£88°8¢ 700" 6€ - - - - - (el - (8DLD9
- 820°¥C - - (€69°L ) - - (GS0°01 ) (08T 9 ) (8D(LD9
(LSLLE ) - - - (LSL°LE ) - - - -
- - - - (evo°se ) Ev0°se N - -
- - - - (SeL'y ) - SeL'Y - -
(619
9L0°61 - ALY 96T (LY9 vl ) - - - -
66¢°1¢ - L9V g€ 9¢¢C (vee'e ) - - - - 0D(STNE)9
(gre et ) - - - (gee et ) - - - -
998°8Le° 1§ (teoe9 §) (veL've §) (6lg $) otTIIr § N $ 8¥L°9S § 676°80T $ 80001 T$
998°8LE 1§ (Te0'€9 §) (yzL've §) (o6l $)  9TT Il $ B $ 87.°9S § 626°80C $ 8¢0°00T°T$
€81 - - - - - - €81 - (819
- - (gLris ) - TLI IS - N N -
(02)(€)9
- - - - (zsr'ie ) - - - TS1°1T
(z9e ey ) - - - (T9¢ ¢y ) - - - -
- - - - (0299 ) - 0299 - -
(619
(916°¢ ) - 9LE 1Ly ) (128°¢ ) - - - -
(88C°¥ ) - 9LE (1LY ) (gol'y ) - - - - (0D)(sTI(E)9
CLE - - - CLE B - - -
196°Ger 1§ (zeoe9  $)  TLO9T § (4! $ 600°5¢T  $ N $ 8CT1°0S § 9yL°80C 988°8LO°T$
Ambaejo],  sy003s Amsear], Quioour suonerado sguruied dAIasaI [e1oadS  oAIasar [eSo] snidins [ejide)  )00)s uowwo) SI0N
aa1sudya1dwod ugroioy paureja1
1oyio y3noryy o soouarepip  pajendorddeun
onjea Irej je uone[sueI
PAINSBAW S}OSSE SJUOWA)BIS
[eIOURUL] WOLJ [eIoURUL]
(sassoy) sured
pasifearu)
1sa1dyu] Ainbg 100 s3uruIed paureldy

juared oy) Jo s1oumo 0} d[qeinquye Anbyg

(s1e[]Op UBMIB], MIN JO SPuBSnOY} ul passaidxy)

1C0C ANV ¢C0C 1€ d4dNdDHd AddNd SYVHA

ALINOT NI SHONVHD 40 SINIAHIVIS A4IVAITOSNOD

AJVIAISANS ANV 'dLT 00 ADOTONHOALOId HIVAONAD

7T0T ‘1€ 10quesa( Je ooue[eq
SIOP[OYQILYS 0} SPUSPIAIP PAUWITR[OUN dNPISAQ
Qwodur dA1suayIdwod
10130 YSnoiy) anfea Irej je juawsoAur Aynba jo jesodsiq
1500 uonjesuadwod JuswAed poseq-a1eys
s20Ko01dwid 0} )00)s AInsear) parIdJsuel]
SoIeyS AINSEAI) JO JUAWAINY
SPUSPIAIP yseD)
QAI9s21 [e10adg
OAIOSAI e
:sSurures 17z Jo uonnquysiq
Qwooul (sso[) dAIsuayaidwod [8j0],
Ieak oY) JOJ OWOoUL (SSO[) SAISUOYaIdwod 1910
IedK oY) I0J SSOT
720T ‘1 Arenuef je oouefeg
720 "€ 1OquIads(] popuo 189k oYy 10,1
120T ‘1€ IoquIood( je doue[eqg
SIOP[OYDIRYS 0} SPUIPIAIP POUIIR[IUN INPIAQ
owoour dAIsuayaIdwoo
1910 Y3noiy) anjeA I1ej Je judw)sosur Anba jo jesodsiq—
spuapiap yooyg N
SPUSPIAIp [SE)
QAI9SA1 B3]
s3urures (g Jo uonnquusiq
owoour (ssof) aArsuayarduwoo [ejo],

1834 9} 10§ SWOOUI (SSO[) dAISUIY2IdWOd I1OYI0
Iedk oY) 10 3joId

120T °1 Arenuef je oduefeq

T20C "€ 10qUIdd3(] popus 1edk oty 107




GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax ($ 9,001) $ 3,568
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Expected credit impairment (gain) loss 6(5)and 12(2) ( 3) 3
Depreciation 6(8)(9)(22) 34,927 34,628
Amortization 6(12)(22) 1,161 1,188
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through 6(26)
profit or loss ( 66 ) -
Interest expense 6(27) 281 252
Interest income 6(24) ( 2,673 ) ( 1,605)
Share of gain of associates accounted for using  6(7)
the equity method ( 286 ) ( 136 )
Gain on lease modification 6(26) ( 51) -
Share-based payment 11,700 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss ( 6,934 ) ( 13,000 )
Notes receivable ( 1,973) 4,164
Accounts receivable 405 ¢ 28,417)
Accounts receivable - related parties ( 167) ( 1,454 )
Other receivables ( 26,595) ( 156 )
Inventories ( 5,918 ) ( 304 )
Prepayments ( 4,673) ( 8,917)
Changes in operating liabilities
Contract liabilities 708 106
Notes payable ( 8) ( 13,448 )
Accounts payable 10,917 11,651
Other payables 6,299 1,319
Other payables - related parties 1,898 -
Other current liabilities 108 ( 469 )
Accrued pension liabilities ( 7,091) ( 5,877)
Cash inflow (outflow) generated from operations 2,965 ( 16,904 )
Interest received 2,273 1,629
Interest paid ( 279) ( 251)
Income tax paid ( 3,449 ) ( 1,733)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating
activities 1,510 ¢ 17,259 )

(Continued)
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GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at amortised
cost - current ($ 104,900 ) $ 20,000
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - 25,000 )
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income 121,933 62,122
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(30) ( 22,578 ) ( 15,121)
Increase in prepayments for equipment ( 970 ) ( 2,839)
Acquisition of intangible assets 6(12) ( 466 ) ( 174 )
Increase in guarantee deposits paid ( 1,168 ) ( 2,690)
Decrease in guarantee deposits paid 2,402 598
Net cash flows (used in) from investing
activities ( 5,747 ) 36,896
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities 6(9)(31) ( 1,224 ) ( 1,230)
Overdue unclaimed dividends to shareholders 6(18) 59 183
Cash dividends paid 6(19)(31) ( 37,757 ) ( 43,362 )
Transferred treasury stock to employees 6(16) 38,883 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities ( 39) ( 44,409 )
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ( 4,276 ) ( 24,772 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6(1) 198,441 223,213
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6(1) $ 194,165 $ 198,441

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Appendix 4

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of Genovate Biotechnology Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related parent company only
statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,

and notes to the parent company only financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the parent company only financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the

“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. ”

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the parent company only financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of
the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Company’s 2022 parent company only financial statements. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole and, in forming

our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter for the Company’s 2022 parent company only financial statements is as follow:

Recognition of sales revenue

Description

Given the sales revenue has a high degree of inherent risk and is material to the parent company only
financial statements, we consider the recognition of sales revenue as a key audit matter. Refer to Note
4(26) for accounting policies on operating revenue recognition, and Note 6(21) for details of operating

revenue.

How our audit addressed the matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the above key audit matter included:

1. Tested the design and implementation effectiveness of the internal control system of sales
transactions.

2. Evaluated the reasonableness of the trade terms and credit line to the customers.
Confirmed the existence of the revenue and the accuracy of revenue recognition by performing
substantive tests on sales transactions, selecting and verifying the transaction documents in relation
to order information and shipping records, and related vouchers in relation to sales returns and

discounts occurring subsequent to the reporting period.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the parent

company only financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

25



Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the

Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the parent company only financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of
China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company

to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We

remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Liu, Chien-Yu Lin, Yu-Kuan
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 10, 2023

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying parent company only financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended
for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic
of China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.

28



GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 189,255 12 % 194,019 13
1110 Financial assets at fair value through 6(2)

profit or loss - current 20,000 1 13,000 1
1136 Current financial assets at amortised  6(4)

cost 282,880 18 177,980 12
1150 Notes receivable, net 6(5) 10,625 1 8,652 1
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(5) 83,880 6 84,282 5
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties  6(5) and 7 1,621 - 1,454 -
1200 Other receivables 7 27,768 2 774 -
130X Inventories 6(6) 145,861 9 139,943 9
1410 Prepayments 7 15,077 1 10,404 1
11XX Total current assets 776,967 50 630,508 42

Non-current assets

1517 Financial assets at fair value through 6(3) and 7

other comprehensive income - non-

current 324,488 21 417,411 27
1550 Investments accounted for using 6(7)

equity method 32,018 2 26,531 2
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8) 401,542 26 408,880 27
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9) 1,746 - 17 -
1760 Investment property - net 6(11) 21,662 1 21,662 1
1780 Intangible assets 6(12) 796 - 1,491 -
1900 Other non-current assets 5,209 - 8,312 1
15XX Total non-current assets 787,461 50 885,004 58
1XXX Total assets $ 1,564,428 100 $ 1,515,512 100

(Continued)
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GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
2130 Contract liabilities - current 6(21) and 7 4,734 1 4,026 -
2150 Notes payable 111 - 119 -
2170 Accounts payable 6(13) 45,798 3 34,881 3
2200 Other payables 6(14) 55,125 4 47,904 3
2220 Other payables - related parties 6(14) and 7 1,898 - - -
2230 Current income tax liabilities 3,271 - 3,398 -
2280 Lease liabilities - current 1,253 - 742 -
2399 Other current liabilities, others 19,651 1 19,543 1
21XX Total current liabilities 131,841 9 110,613 7
Non-current liabilities
2580 Non-current lease liabilities 585 - 91 -
2600 Other non-current liabilities 6(15) 21,175 1 25,942 2
25XX Total non-current liabilities 21,760 1 26,033 2
2XXX Total Liabilities 153,601 10 136,646 9
Equity
Share capital 6(17)
3110 Common stock 1,093,758 70 1,100,038 72
Capital surplus 6(18)
3200 Capital surplus 210,512 13 208,929 14
Retained earnings 6(19)
3310 Legal reserve 61,483 4 56,748 4
3320 Special reserve 35,043 2 - -
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 105,649 7 111,226 7
Other equity interest 6(20)
3400 Other equity interest 95,618) ( 6) ( 35,043) ( 2)
3500  Treasury stocks 6(17) - - ( 63,032) ( 4)
3XXX Total equity 1,410,827 90 1,378,866 91
Significant contingent liabilities and 9
unrecognised contract commitments
Significant events after the balance 11
sheet date
3X2X Total liabilities and equity 1,564,428 100 $ 1,515,512 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except earnings (losses) per share amounts)

Year ended December 31
2022 2021
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000  Sales revenue 6(21) and 7 $ 438,759 100 $ 434,254 100
5000  Operating costs 6(6)(12)(22)(23) ( 283,889) ( 65) ( 284,500) ( 65)
5900 Net operating margin 154,870 35 149,754 35
Operating expenses 6(5)(8)(12)(15)(22)
(23)and 7
6100 Selling expenses ( 64,319) ( 14) ( 57,468) ( 13)
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 42,560) ( 10) ( 38,022) ( 9)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 61,878) ( 14) ( 55,427) ( 13)
6450 Expected credit impairment gain 12(2)
(loss) 3 - ( 3) -
6000 Total operating expenses ( 168,760) ( 38) ( 150,920) ( 35)
6900  Operating loss ( 13,890) ( 3) ( 1,166) -
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income 6(24) 2,670 1 1,605 -
7010 Other income 6(10)(11)(25) 1,653 - 3,445 1
7020 Other gains and losses 6(26) 73 - ( 46) -
7050 Finance costs 6(27) ( 281) - ( 252) -
7070 Share of profit (loss) of associates ~ 6(7)
and joint ventures accounted for
using equity method 774 - ( 18) -
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses 4,889 1 4,734 1
7900  Profit (loss) before income tax ( 9,001) ( 2) 3,568 1
7950 Income tax expense 6(28) ( 3,322) ( 1) ( 3,196) ( 1)
8200  Profit (loss) for the year ($ 12,323) ( 3) § 372 -
Other comprehensive income
Components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
8311 Loss on remeasurements of defined  6(15)
benefit plans ($ 2,324) ( 1) ($ 4,193) ( 1)
8316 Unrealised gains (losses) from 6(3)(20)
investments in equity instruments
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 29,010 T ( 400) -
8330 Share of other comprehensive 6(7)(20)
income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using equity
method, components of other
comprehensive income that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss 4,457 1 776 -
Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Financial statements translation 6(20)
differences of foreign operations 256 - ( 471) -
8300  Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year $ 31,399 7 ($ 4,288) ( 1)
8500  Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year $ 19,076 4 ($ 3,916) ( 1)
Earnings (losses) per share 6(29)
9750 Basic ($ 1) -
9850 Diluted (% 1) -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax ($ 9,001) $ 3,568
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Expected credit impairment (gain) loss 6(5)and 12(2) ( 3) 3
Depreciation 6(8)(9)(22) 34,927 34,628
Amortization 6(12)(22) 1,161 1,188
Net gain on financial assets at fair value through 6(26)
profit or loss ( 66 ) -
Interest expense 6(27) 281 252
Interest income 6(24) ( 2,670 ) ( 1,605)
Share of (gain) loss on associates accounted for  6(7)
using equity method ( 774 ) 18
Gain on lease modification 6(26) ( 51) -
Share-based payment 6(16) 11,700 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss ( 6,934 ) ( 13,000 )
Notes receivable ( 1,973) 4,164
Accounts receivable 405 ¢ 28,417)
Accounts receivable - related parties ( 167) ( 1,454 )
Other receivables ( 26,595) ( 156 )
Inventories ( 5,918 ) ( 304 )
Prepayments ( 4,673) ( 8,917)
Changes in operating liabilities
Contract liabilities 708 106
Notes payable ( 8) ( 13,448 )
Accounts payable 10,917 11,651
Other payables 6,299 1,319
Other payables - related parties 1,898 -
Other current liabilities 108 ( 469 )
Accrued pension liabilities ( 7,091) ( 5,877)
Cash inflow (outflow) generated from operations 2,430 ( 16,750 )
Interest received 2,270 1,629
Interest paid ( 279) ( 251)
Income tax paid ( 3,449 ) ( 1,733)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating
activities 1,022 ( 17,105)

(Continued)
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GENOVATE BIOTECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease in financial assets at amortised
cost - current ($ 104,900 ) $ 20,000
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - 25,000 )
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income 121,933 62,122
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(30) ( 22,578 ) ( 15,121)
Increase in prepayments for equipment ( 970 ) ( 2,839)
Acquisition of intangible assets 6(12) ( 466 ) ( 174 )
Increase in guarantee deposits paid ( 1,168 ) ( 2,690)
Decrease in guarantee deposits paid 2,402 598
Net cash flows (used in) from investing
activities ( 5,747 ) 36,896
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities 6(9)(31) ( 1,224 ) ( 1,230)
Overdue unclaimed dividends to shareholders 6(18) 59 183
Cash dividends paid 6(19)(31) ( 37,757) ( 43,362 )
Transferred treasury stock to employees 6(16) 38,883 -
Net cash flows used in financing activities ( 39) ( 44,409 )
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ( 4,764 ) ( 24,618 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6(1) 194,019 218,637
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6(1) $ 189,255 $ 194,019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these parent company only financial statements.
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Appendix 5

Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
Profit Distribution Table

Year 2022
Unit: NTD
Beginning retained earnings 33,689,496
less : Loss after tax in Year 2022 (12,323,216)
less : Beginning unappropriated retained earnings changes (7,693,395)
(changes from treasury stocks canceled; less retained earnings)
less : Retained earnings adjustment in Year 2022 (2,324,469)
(defined benefit plan an actuarial loss )
Add : Dispose equity at fair value through other comprehensive profit and loss 94,296,990
in 2022
Less : 10% legal reserve (7,195,591)
Less : Special reserve (60,573,594)
(Issue No. Financial Supervisory Securities Corporate 1090150022)
Distributable net profit 37,876,221
distributable items : cash dividend (NTD 0.175 per share ) (19,140,774)
Year End Unappropriated retained earnings 18,735,447

Note: Dividend Payout Ratio is temporary according to outstanding shares 109,375,851 dated Jan 31, 2023.

Representative : Chen, Jen  Manager : Chu, Chia-Chen  Accounting Supervisor : Lin, Hui-Ling
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.

Appendix 6

The Comparison Table of Amendments of Proposed Articles of Incorporation

Current Articles (2010.5.29)

Proposed Article (2023.3.10)

Explanatory note

Chapter 3: Shareholders meeting
Article 10: The shareholders meeting
shall be two kinds:

1.The regular meeting of shareholders
shall be convened within six months
after close of each fiscal year.

2.Special meeting of shareholders shall
be held when necessary and referred
to the competent authority.

Chapter 3: Shareholders meeting
Article 10: The shareholders meeting
shall be two kinds:

1.The regular meeting of shareholders
shall be convened within six months
after close of each fiscal year.

2.Special meeting of shareholders shall
be held when necessary and referred
to the competent authority.

A shareholders meeting can be held by

Amended in

means of a visual communication

accordance with

network or other methods promulgated

Article 172-2 of the

by the central competent authority.
The condition, operation procedure and

other relative regulation of visual
shall be in
comply with Financial Supervisory

communication network

Commission if any.

Company Act

Atrticle 34:

The original Articles of Incorporation
were adopted on Feb 14, 1993. 1st
Amended thereafter on Aug 17, 1993,
2nd Amended on Aug 28, 1995,

3rd Amended on June 24, 1996,

4th Amended on June 5, 1997,

5th Amended on Nov 20, 1997,

6th Amended on June 7, 1999,

7th Amended on May 5, 2000,

8th Amended on May 25, 2001,

9th Amended on June 27, 2002,

10th Amended on June 17, 2005,

11th Amended on June 28, 2006,

12th Amended on June 22, 2007,

13th Amended on June 18, 2009,

14th Amended on June 22, 2010,

15th Amended on June 24, 2013,

16th Amended on May 31, 2016,

17th Amended on June 23, 2017,

18th Amended on May 30, 2019.

19th Amended on May 29, 2020.

Article 34:

The original Articles of Incorporation
were adopted on Feb 14, 1993. 1st
Amended thereafter on Aug 17, 1993,
2nd Amended on Aug 28, 1995,

3rd Amended on June 24, 1996,

4th Amended on June 5, 1997,

5th Amended on Nov 20, 1997,

6th Amended on June 7, 1999,

7th Amended on May 5, 2000,

8th Amended on May 25, 2001,

9th Amended on June 27, 2002,

10th Amended on June 17, 2005,

11th Amended on June 28, 2006,

12th Amended on June 22, 2007,

13th Amended on June 18, 2009,

14th Amended on June 22, 2010,

15th Amended on June 24, 2013,

16th Amended on May 31, 2016,

17th Amended on June 23, 2017,

18th Amended on May 30, 2019,

19th Amended on May 29, 2020.

20th Amended on March 10, 2023

Update revised date
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.
The Comparison Table of Amendments of the Proposed ordinance of shareholders meeting

Appendix 7

Current Articles (2021.5.31)

Proposed Articles (2023.03.10)

(Explanatory note)

Article 3: (Convening shareholders meetings and
shareholders meeting notices)
Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation,
The Company's shareholders meetings shall be
convened by the Board of Directors.
The Company shall prepare electronic versions of]
the shareholders meeting notice and proxy forms,
and the origins of and explanatory materials
relating to all proposals, including proposals for
ratification, matters for deliberation, or the election
or dismissal of directors or supervisors, and upload
them to the Market Observation Post System
(MOPS) before 30 days before the date of a regular
shareholders meeting or before 15 days before the
date of a special shareholders meeting. The
Company shall prepare electronic versions of the
shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental
meeting materials and upload them to the MOPS
before 21 days before the date of the regular
shareholders meeting or before 15 days before the
date of the special shareholders meeting. The
Company shall also have prepared the shareholders
meeting agenda and supplemental meeting
materials and made them available for review by
shareholders at any time. The meeting agenda and
supplemental materials shall also be displayed at
The Company and the professional shareholder
services agent designated thereby and also shall be
distributed on-site at the meeting.

The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting
shall be specified in the meeting notice and public
announcement. With the consent of the addressee,
the meeting notice may be given in electronic form.
(Omitted)

Article 3: (Convening shareholders meetings and
shareholders meeting notices)

Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation,

The Company's shareholders meetings shall be

convened by the Board of Directors.

Changes to how The Company convenes its

Add paragraph 2,

shareholders meeting shall be resolved by the

shareholders shall be aware

Board of Directors, and shall be made no later

of the changes methods of]

than mailing of the shareholders meeting notice.
The Company shall prepare electronic versions

of the shareholders meeting notice and proxy
forms, and the origins of and explanatory
materials relating to all proposals, including
proposals  for ratification, matters for
deliberation, or the election or dismissal of]
directors or supervisors, and upload them to the
Market Observation Post System (MOPS) before
30 days before the date of a regular shareholders
meeting or before 15 days before the date of a
special shareholders meeting. The Company shall
prepare electronic versions of the shareholders
meeting agenda and supplemental meeting
materials and upload them to the MOPS before
21 days before the date of the regular
shareholders meeting or before 15 days before
the date of the special shareholders meeting. The
Company shall also have prepared the
shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental
meeting materials and made them available for
review by shareholders at any time. The meeting
agenda and supplemental materials shall also be
displayed at The Company and the professional
shareholder services agent designated thereby.

The Company shall make the meeting agenda and

the meeting and inform no
later than mailing the

meeting notice.

Revise paragraph 2 and add

supplemental meeting materials in the preceding

paragraph 4, The Company

paragraph available to shareholders for review in

may follow the competent

the following manner on the date of the
shareholders meeting:

1.For physical shareholders meetings, to be

authority suggestion that
public companies _shall
provide multiple methods

distributed on-site at the meeting.
2.For hybrid shareholders meetings, to be

for meeting such as_virtual,
hybrid, or physical ways,

distributed on-site at the meeting and shared on

Whether the shareholders

the virtual meeting platform.
3.For virtual-only shareholders meetings,

attend in person or via
virtual, the meeting agenda

electronic files shall be shared on the virtual

and supplemental materials

meeting platform.
The reasons for convening a shareholders

meeting shall be specified in the meeting notice
and public announcement. With the consent of]
the addressee, the meeting notice may be given in
electronic form.

(Omitted)

are available on the date of]
the shareholders meeting.

Article 4:

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may
appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by providing
the proxy form issued by The Company and stating
the scope of the proxy's authorization.

A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and

Article 4:

For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder
may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by
providing the proxy form issued by The
Company and stating the scope of the proxy's

authorization.
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.
The Comparison Table of Amendments of the Proposed ordinance of shareholders meeting

Current Articles (2021.5.31)

Proposed Articles (2023.03.10)

(Explanatory note)

appoint only one proxy for any given shareholders
meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to The
Company five days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When duplicate proxy forms
are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail
unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous
proxy appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to The
Company, if the shareholder intends to attend the
meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronically, a written notice
of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to The
Company two business days before the meeting
date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after
that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy
shall prevail.

A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and
appoint only one proxy for any given
shareholders meeting, and shall deliver the proxy
form to The Company five days before the date
of the sharecholders meeting. When duplicate
proxy forms are delivered, the one received
earliest shall prevail unless a declaration is made
to cancel the previous proxy appointment.

After a proxy form has been delivered to The
Company, if the shareholder intends to attend the
meeting in person or to exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronically, a written notice
of proxy cancellation shall be submitted to The
Company two business days before the meeting
date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after
that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy
shall prevail.

If, after a proxy form is delivered to The
Company, a shareholder wishes to attend the
shareholders meeting online, a written notice of]
proxy cancellation shall be submitted to The
Company two business days before the meeting
date. If the cancellation notice is submitted after
that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy
shall prevail.

Add paragraph 4, after a
proxy form is delivered to

The Company, a
shareholder  wishes  to
attend the shareholders

meeting online, a written
notice of proxy
cancellation  shall  be
submitted to The Company
two_business days before
the meeting date.

Article 5: (Principles determining the time and

place of a shareholders meeting)
The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the
premises of The Company, or a place easily
accessible to shareholders and suitable for a
shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no
earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full
consideration shall be given to the opinions of the
independent directors with respect to the place and
time of the meeting.

Article 5: (Principles determining the time and
place of a shareholders meeting)

The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the
premises of The Company, or a place easily
accessible to shareholders and suitable for a
shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no
earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. Full
consideration shall be given to the opinions of the
independent directors with respect to the place
and time of the meeting.

The restrictions on the place of the meeting shall

Add Paragraph 2. stipulate

not apply when The Company convenes a virtual-

no restriction on meeting

only shareholders meeting.

location when The
Company convenes virtual-
only shareholders meeting.

Article 6: (Preparation of documents such as the
attendance book)

The Company shall specify in its shareholders

meeting notices the time during which attendance

registrations for shareholders) will be accepted, the

place to register for attendance, and other matters

for attention.

The time during which shareholder attendance
registrations will be accepted, as stated in the
preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes
prior to the time the meeting commences. The
place at which attendance registrations are
accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient
number of suitable personnel assigned to handle
the registrations.

Article 6: (Preparation of documents such as the
attendance book)

The Company shall specify in its shareholders
meeting notices the time during which attendance
registrations for shareholders, solicitors and
proxies (collectively "shareholders") will be
accepted, the place to register for attendance, and
other matters for attention.

The time during which shareholder attendance
registrations will be accepted, as stated in the
preceding paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes
prior to the time the meeting commences. The
place at which attendance registrations are
accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient
number of suitable personnel assigned to handle

the registrations. For virtual shareholders

Revise
stipulate
procedure
virtual

meeting.

paragraph 2 to
the time and
for attending

shareholders
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.
The Comparison Table of Amendments of the Proposed ordinance of shareholders meeting

Current Articles (2021.5.31)

Proposed Articles (2023.03.10)

(Explanatory note)

Shareholders or proxies (collectively
"shareholders") shall attend shareholders meetings
based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other
certificates of attendance. The Company may not
arbitrarily add requirements for other documents
beyond those showing eligibility to attend
presented by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting
proxy forms shall also bring identification
documents for verification.

The Company shall furnish the attending
shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or
attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card
in lieu of signing in.

The Company shall furnish attending shareholders
with the meeting agenda book, annual report,
attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and
other meeting materials. Where there is an election
of directors or supervisors, pre-printed ballots shall
also be furnished.

When the government or a juristic person is a
shareholder, it may be represented by more than
one representative at a shareholders meeting. When
a juristic person is appointed to attend as proxy, it
may designate only one person to represent it in the
meeting.

meetings, shareholders may begin to register on
the virtual meeting platform 30 minutes before
the meeting starts.

Shareholders completing registration will be
deemed as attend the shareholders meeting in
person.

Shareholders shall attend shareholders meetings
based on attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other
certificates of attendance. The Company may not
arbitrarily add requirements for other documents
beyond those showing eligibility to attend
presented by shareholders. Solicitors soliciting
proxy forms shall also bring identification
documents for verification.

The Company shall furnish the attending
shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or
attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card
in lieu of signing in.

The Company shall furnish attending
shareholders with the meeting agenda book,
annual report, attendance card, speaker's slips,
voting slips, and other meeting materials. Where
there is an election of directors or supervisors,
pre-printed ballots shall also be furnished. When
the government or a juristic person is a
shareholder, it may be represented by more than
one representative at a shareholders meeting.
When a juristic person is appointed to attend as
proxy, it may designate only one person to
represent it in the meeting.

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,

Revise paragraph 3  to
identify* shareholders”
definition in paragraph 1.

Add  paragraph 7. a

shareholders wishing to attend the meeting online

shareholder shall register a

shall register with The Company two days before

virtual shareholders

the meeting date.
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,

meeting 2 days before the
meeting date.

The Company shall upload the meeting agenda

Add paragraph 8. The

book, annual report and other meeting materials

Company shall upload the

to the virtual meeting platform at least 30 minutes

meeting agenda  book,

before the meeting starts, and keep this

annual report and other

information disclosed until the end of the

meeting materials to the

meeting.

virtual meeting platform.

Atrticle 6-1:
To convene a virtual shareholders meeting, The

1.Add Article 6.1
2.For shareholders’ right

Company shall include the follow particulars in

and  restriction, The

the shareholders meeting notice:
1.How shareholders attend the virtual meeting

Company_shall stipulate
how shareholders attend

and exercise their rights.
2.Actions to be taken if the virtual meeting

the virtual meeting and
exercise  their  rights.

platform or participation in the virtual meeting

Actions to be taken if the

is obstructed due to natural disasters, accidents

virtual meeting platform

or other force majeure events, at least covering| or participation in the
the following particulars: virtual meeting is
A.To what time the meeting is postponed or| obstructed due to natural
from what time the meeting will resume if| disasters, accidents or
the above obstruction continues and cannot| other  force  majeure

be removed, and the date to which the

events, at least covering

meeting is postponed or on which the

the following particulars:

meeting will resume.

to what time the meeting
is postponed or from what
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.
The Comparison Table of Amendments of the Proposed ordinance of shareholders meeting

Current Articles (2021.5.31)

Proposed Articles (2023.03.10)

(Explanatory note)

B.Shareholders not having registered to attend

time the meeting will

the affected virtual shareholders meeting

resume if the above

shall not attend the postponed or resumed

obstruction continues and

session.
C.In case of a hybrid sharecholders meeting,

cannot be removed, and
the date to which the

when the virtual meeting cannot be

meeting is postponed or

continued, if the total number of shares

on which the meeting will

represented at the meeting, after deducting| resume according to
those represented by shareholders attending| paragraph  1.2.4,5 of
the virtual shareholders meeting online,| Article  44-20, of
meets the minimum legal requirement for a| Regulations Governing
sharecholder meeting, then the sharcholders| the Administration of
meeting  shall continue. The shares| Shareholder Services of
represented by sharcholders attending the| Public Companies.

virtual meeting online shall be counted

Actions to be taken if the

towards the total number of shares

outcome of all proposals

represented by shareholders present at the

have been announced and

meeting, and the shareholders attending the

extraordinary motion has

virtual meeting online shall be deemed

not been carried out. The

abstaining from voting on all proposals on

Company shall provide

meeting agenda of that shareholders| proper alternative
meeting. measures for
D.Actions to be taken if the outcome of all| shareholders with
proposals have been announced and| difficulties in attending a
extraordinary motion has not been carried| virtual shareholders
out. meeting.
3.To convene a virtual-only shareholders
meeting, appropriate alternative measures

available to shareholders with difficulties in
attending a virtual shareholders meeting online
shall be specified.

Article 8:(Documentation of a shareholders
meeting by audio or video)

The Company, beginning from the time it accepts
shareholder attendance registrations, shall make an
uninterrupted audio and video recording of the
registration procedure, the proceedings of the
shareholders meeting, and the voting and vote
counting procedures.

The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph
shall be retained for at least one year. If, however,
a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189
of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained
until the conclusion of the litigation.

Article 8:(Documentation of a shareholders
meeting by audio or video)

The Company, beginning from the time it accepts
shareholder attendance registrations, shall make
an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the
registration procedure, the proceedings of the
shareholders meeting, and the voting and vote
counting procedures.

The recorded materials of the preceding
paragraph shall be retained for at least one year.
If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant
to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording
shall be retained until the conclusion of the
litigation.

Where a shareholders meeting is held online, The

1.No Changes in paragraph

1 and paragraph

2.Add paragraph 3 and

paragraph 4, The
Company_shall stipulate
the regulations of records

of shareholder
registration, sign-in,
check-in, questions

raised, votes cast and
results of votes counted
by The Company, and
continuously audio and
video record, without
interruption, the

Company shall keep records of shareholder

proceedings of the virtual

registration, sign-in, check-in, questions raised,

meeting from beginning

votes cast and results of votes counted by The

to end referring to Article

Company, and continuously audio and video

183 of the Company Act

record, without interruption, the proceedings of

and  Article 18  of

the virtual meeting from beginning to end.
The information and audio and video recording

Regulations  Governing
Procedure for Board of

in the preceding paragraph shall be properly kept

Directors Meetings of

by The Company during the entirety of its

Public Companies.

existence, and copies of the audio and video

3.Add paragraph 5, The

recording shall be provided to and kept by the

Company shall stipulate

party appointed to handle matters of the virtual

the rules for uninterrupted

meeting.

audio and video record,
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In case of a virtual shareholders meeting, The| Also, The Company shall
Company is advised to audio and video record the| record the back-end
back-end operation interface of the virtual| operation interface of the
meeting platform. virtual meeting platform.
The Company  shall
stipulate the  possible
accessibility of measures
in _its ordinance of
shareholders meeting  to
ensure  Sync _ monitor
record to a certain
specification of hardware,
software and network
security .

Article 9: Article 9:
Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be|Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be|Revise paragraph 1. The
calculated based on numbers of shares. The number|calculated based on numbers of shares. The|Company shall include
of shares in attendance shall be calculatedjnumber of shares in attendance shall be|shareholders attendance via
according to the shares indicated by the attendance|calculated according to the shares indicated by|virtual meeting for total
book and sign-in cards handed in plus the number|the attendance book and sign-in cards handed in,|shares of attendance.

of shares whose voting rights are exercised by|and the shares checked in on the virtual meeting
correspondence or electronically. platform, plus the number of shares whose voting
rights are exercised by correspondence or
electronically.

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the|The chair shall call the meeting to order at the
appointed meeting time and disclose information|appointed meeting time and disclose information
concerning the number of nonvoting shares and|concerning the number of nonvoting shares and
number of shares represented by sharcholders|number of shares represented by shareholders
attending the meeting. However, when the|attending the meeting.However, when the
attending shareholders do not represent a majority|attending shareholders do not represent a
of the total number of issued shares, the chair may|majority of the total number of issued shares, the
announce a postponement, provided that no more|chair may announce a postponement, provided
than two such postponements, for a combined total |that no more than two such postponements, for a
of no more than one hour, may be made. If the|combined total of no more than one hour, may be
quorum is not met after two postponements and thejmade. If the quorum is not met after two
attending shareholders still represent less than one|postponements and the attending shareholders
third of the total number of issued shares, the chair|still represent less than one third of the total
shall declare the meeting adjourned. number of issued shares, the chair shall declare
the meeting adjourned. In the event of a virtual|Revise paragraph 3, in the
shareholders meeting, The Company shall alsojevent of a  virtual
declare the meeting adjourned at the virtual|shareholders meeting, The
meeting platform. Company shall also declare
If the quorum is not met after two postponements|Ifthe quorum is not met after two postponements|the meeting adjourned at
as referred to in the preceding paragraph, but the|as referred to in the preceding paragraph, but the|the virtual meeting
attending shareholders represent one third or more|attending shareholders represent one third or|platform.

of the total number of issued shares, a tentative\more of the total number of issued shares, a
resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175,|tentative resolution may be adopted pursuant to
paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders|Article 175, Paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all
shall be notified of the tentative resolution and|shareholders shall be notified of the tentative
another shareholders meeting shall be convened|resolution and another shareholders meeting shall
within one month. be convened within one month. In the event of a|Revise paragraph 4, The
virtual shareholders meeting, shareholders|Company shall call a
intending to attend the meeting online shall re-|tentative resolution and
register to The Company in accordance with|another shareholders
Article 6. meeting shall be convened.
When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the|When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the|Shareholders intending to
attending shareholders represent a majority of the|attending shareholders represent a majority of the |attend the meeting online
total number of issued shares, the chair may|total number of issued shares, the chair may|shall re-register to The
resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the|resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the| Company.
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shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the
Company Act.

shareholders meeting pursuant to Article 174 of]
the Company Act.

Article 11: (Shareholder speech)

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must
specify on a speaker's slip the subject of the speech,
his/her shareholder account number (or attendance
card number), and account name. The order in
which shareholders speak will be set by the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a
speaker's slip but does not actually speak shall be
deemed to have not spoken. When the content of]
the speech does not correspond to the subject given
on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall
prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a shareholder
may not speak more than twice on the same
proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5
minutes. If the shareholder's speech violates the
rules or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the
chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other
shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless they
have sought and obtained the consent of the chair
and the shareholder that has the floor; the chair
shall stop any violation.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or
more representatives to attend a shareholders
meeting, only one of the representatives so
appointed may speak on the same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the
chair may respond in person or direct relevant
personnel to respond.

Article 11: (Shareholder speech)

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must
specify on a speaker's slip the subject of the
speech, his/her shareholder account number (or
attendance card number), and account name. The
order in which shareholders speak will be set by
the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a
speaker's slip but does not actually speak shall be
deemed to have not spoken. When the content of]
the speech does not correspond to the subject
given on the speaker's slip, the spoken content
shall prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a
shareholder may not speak more than twice on
the same proposal, and a single speech may not
exceed 5 minutes. If the shareholder's speech
violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the
agenda item, the chair may terminate the speech.
When an attending shareholder is speaking, other
shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless
they have sought and obtained the consent of the
chair and the shareholder that has the floor; the
chair shall stop any violation.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two
or more representatives to attend a shareholders
meeting, only one of the representatives so
appointed may speak on the same proposal.
After an attending sharecholder has spoken, the
chair may respond in person or direct relevant
personnel to respond.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is

Add  paragraph 7. The

convened, shareholders attending the virtual

Company stipulate the rules

meeting online may raise questions in writing at

for shareholders speech,

the virtual meeting platform from the chair

procedure, and restriction

declaring the meeting open until the chair

for online meeting.

declaring the meeting adjourned. No more than

Add  paragraph 8., The

two questions for the same proposal may be

Company _shall disclose

raised. Each question shall contain no more than

questions not in violation of|

200 words. The regulations in paragraphs 1 to 5

proposal in shareholders

do not apply.
As long as questions so raised in accordance with

meeting _in _the virtual
platform for other

the preceding paragraph are not in violation of the

shareholders notice.

regulations or beyond the scope of a proposal, it
is_advisable the questions be disclosed to the
public at the virtual meeting platform.

Article 13:

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each
share held, except when the shares are restricted
shares or are deemed non-voting shares under
Article 179, paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

When The Company holds a shareholder meeting,
it shall adopt exercise of voting rights by electronic
means and may adopt exercise of voting rights by
correspondence. When voting rights are exercised

by correspondence or electronic means, the method

Article 13:

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each share held, except when the shares are
restricted shares or are deemed non-voting shares
under Article 179, Paragraph 2 of the Company
Act.

When The Company holds a shareholder
meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights
by electronic means and may adopt exercise of]
voting rights by correspondence. When voting

rights are exercised by correspondence or
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of exercise shall be specified in the shareholders
meeting notice. A shareholder exercising voting
rights by correspondence or electronic means will
be deemed to have attended the meeting in person,
but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the
extraordinary motions and amendments to original
proposals of that meeting; it is therefore advisable
that The Company avoid the submission of]
extraordinary motions and amendments to original
proposals.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights
by correspondence or electronic means under the
preceding paragraph shall deliver a written
declaration of intent to The Company before two
days before the date of the shareholders meeting.
When duplicate declarations of intent are
delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail,
except when a declaration is made to cancel the
earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by
correspondence or electronic means, in the event
the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders
meeting in person or online, a written declaration
of intent to retract the voting rights already
exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be
made known to The Company, by the same means
by which the voting rights were exercised, before
two business days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction is
submitted after that time, the voting rights already
exercised by correspondence or electronic means
shall prevail. When a shareholder has exercised
voting rights both by correspondence or electronic
means and by appointing a proxy to attend a
shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised
by the proxy in the meeting shall prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act
and in The Company's articles of incorporation, the
passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative
vote of a majority of the voting rights represented
by the attending shareholders. At the time of a vote,
for each proposal, the chair or a person designated
by the chair shall first announce the total number
of voting rights represented by the attending
shareholders, followed by a poll of the
shareholders. After the conclusion of the meeting,
on the same day it is held, the results for each
proposal, based on the numbers of votes for and
against and the number of abstentions, shall be
entered into the MOPS.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a
proposal, the chair shall present the amended or
alternative proposal together with the original
proposal and decide the order in which they will be
put to a vote. When any one among them is passed,

electronic means, the method of exercise shall be
specified in the shareholders meeting notice. A
shareholder exercising voting rights by
correspondence or electronic means will be
deemed to have attended the meeting in person,
but to have waived his/her rights with respect to
the extraordinary motions and amendments to
original proposals of that meeting; it is therefore
advisable that The Company avoid the
submission of extraordinary motions and
amendments to original proposals.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights
by correspondence or electronic means under the
preceding paragraph shall deliver a written
declaration of intent to The Company two days
before the date of the shareholders meeting.
When duplicate declarations of intent are
delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail,
except when a declaration is made to cancel the
earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by
correspondence or electronic means, in the event
the shareholder intends to attend the shareholders
meeting in person or online, a written declaration
of intent to retract the voting rights already
exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be
made known to The Company, by the same
means by which the voting rights were exercised,
before two business days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. If the notice of retraction
is submitted after that time, the voting rights
already exercised by correspondence or
electronic means shall prevail. When a
shareholder has exercised voting rights both by
correspondence or electronic means and by
appointing a proxy to attend a sharecholders
meeting, the voting rights exercised by the proxy
in the meeting shall prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company
Act and in The Company's articles of]
incorporation, the passage of a proposal shall
require an affirmative vote of a majority of the
voting rights represented by the attending
shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each
proposal, the chair or a person designated by the
chair shall first announce the total number of]
voting rights represented by the attending
shareholders, followed by a poll of the
shareholders. After the conclusion of the
meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for
each proposal, based on the numbers of votes for
and against and the number of abstentions, shall
be entered into the MOPS.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to
a proposal, the chair shall present the amended or
alternative proposal together with the original
proposal and decide the order in which they will
be put to a vote. When any one among them is

Revise  paragraph 4,
shareholders exercise
voting rights by written
notice or electronically,
he/she shall make a written
declaration of intent to
retract the voting rights by
the same means to The
Company.
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the other proposals will then be deemed rejected,
and no further voting shall be required.

Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the
voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the
chair, provided that all monitoring personnel shall
be shareholders of The Company.

Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals
or elections shall be conducted in public at the
place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately
after vote counting has been completed, the results
of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the
numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the
meeting, and a record made of the vote.

passed, the other proposals will then be deemed
rejected, and no further voting shall be required.
Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the
voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the
chair, provided that all monitoring personnel
shall be shareholders of The Company.

Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals
or elections shall be conducted in public at the
place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately
after vote counting has been completed, the
results of the voting, including the statistical
tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be
announced on-site at the meeting, and a record
made of the vote.

When The Company convenes a virtual

Add  paragraph 9 and

shareholders meeting, after the chair declares the

paragraph 10, in the event

meeting open, shareholders attending the

of a wvirtual shareholders

meeting online shall cast votes on proposals and

meeting, votes shall be

elections on the virtual meeting platform before

counted at once after the

the chair announces the voting session ends or

chair announces the voting

will be deemed abstained from voting.
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,

session ends, and results of]
votes and elections shall be

votes shall be counted at once after the chair
announces the voting session ends, and results of]

announced immediately.
Add paragraph 11, When

votes and elections shall be announced

the Company convenes a

immediately.
When The Company convenes a hybrid

hybrid shareholders
meeting, if shareholders

shareholders meeting, if shareholders who have

who have registered to

registered to attend the meeting online in

attend the meeting online

accordance with Article 6 decide to attend the

decide to  attend the

physical shareholders meeting in person, they

physical shareholders

shall revoke their registration two days before the

meeting _in _person, they

shareholders meeting in the same manner as they

shall revoke their

registered. If their registration is not revoked

registration two days before

within the time limit, they may only attend the

the shareholders meeting in

shareholders meeting online.
When shareholders exercise voting rights by

the same manner as they
registered.

correspondence or electronic means, unless they

Revise paragraph 12. for

have withdrawn the declaration of intent and

fairness on vote rights in

attended the shareholders meeting online, except

for extraordinary motions, they will not exercise

voting rights on the original proposals or make
any amendments to the original proposals or

exercise voting rights on amendments to the

anyways, when
shareholders exercise
voting rights by
correspondence or
electronic _means, unless

original proposal.

they have withdrawn the
declaration of intent and
attended the shareholders
meeting online  or in
physical, except for
extraordinary motions, they
will not exercise voting
rights on the original
proposals or make any
amendments to the original
proposals  or  exercise
voting rights on
amendments to the original
proposal referring to the
explanatory  notes of
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Business and Industry of

No.10102404740

dated

Feb.24, 2012

and No.

10102414350 dated May 3,

2012

of Ministry  of

Economic Affairs.

Article 15:

Matters relating to the resolutions of a
shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be
signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and a
copy distributed to each shareholder within 20
days after the conclusion of the meeting. The
meeting minutes may be produced and distributed
in electronic form.

The Company may distribute the meeting minutes
of the preceding paragraph by means of a public
announcement made through the MOPS.

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the
year, month, day, and place of the meeting, the
chair's full name, the methods by which
resolutions were adopted, and a summary of the
deliberations and their voting results (including
the number of voting rights), and disclose the
number of voting rights won by each candidate in
the event of an election of directors or
supervisors. The minutes shall be retained for the
duration of the existence of The Company.

Article 15:

Matters relating to the resolutions of a
shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes. The meeting minutes shall be
signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and
a copy distributed to each shareholder within 20
days after the conclusion of the meeting. The
meeting minutes may be produced and
distributed in electronic form.

The Company may distribute the meeting
minutes of the preceding paragraph by means of|
a public announcement made through the MOPS.
The meeting minutes shall accurately record the
year, month, day, and place of the meeting, the
chair's full name, the methods by which
resolutions were adopted, and a summary of the
deliberations and their voting results (including
the number of voting rights), and disclose the
number of voting rights won by each candidate in
the event of an election of directors or
supervisors. The minutes shall be retained for the
duration of the existence of The Company.

Where a virtual shareholders meeting is

1.Add paragraph 4, for

sharcholders with
different levels of digital
accessibility, except
paragraph 3, The
Company  shall  also
record the start time and
end time of  the
shareholders meeting,
how the meeting is
convened, the chair's and
secretary's name, and
actions to be taken in the
event of disruption to the
virtual meeting platform
or participation in the
meeting online due to
natural disasters,
accidents or other force
majeure events, and how
issues are dealt with in the
minutes.

2.Add paragraph 5, for

shareholders with

convened, in addition to the particulars to be

different levels of digital

included in the meeting minutes as described in

accessibility, The

the preceding paragraph, the start time and end

Company _ shall  offer

time of the shareholders meeting, how the

clearly the alternative

meeting is convened, the chair's and secretary's

measures for shareholders

name, and actions to be taken in the event of

with difficulties to attend

disruption to the virtual meeting platform or

online on _ convening

participation in the meeting online due to natural

notice and also specify in

disasters, accidents or other force majeure events,

the meeting  minutes

and how issues are dealt with shall also be

alternative measures

included in the minutes.
When convening a virtual-only shareholder

available to shareholders
with difficulties in

meeting, other than compliance with the| attending a virtual-only
requirements in the preceding paragraph, The| shareholders meeting
Company shall specify in the meeting minutes| online
alternative measures available to sharecholders
with difficulties in attending a virtual-only
shareholders meeting online

Article 16: Article 16: 1.Revise  paragraph 1,

(Public disclosure)

On the day of a shareholders meeting, The
Company shall compile in the prescribed format a
statistical statement of the number of shares
obtained by solicitors through solicitation, the
number of shares represented by proxies and shall
make an express disclosure of the same at the place

of the shareholders meeting.

(Public disclosure)

On the day of a shareholders meeting, The
Company shall compile in the prescribed format
a statistical statement of the number of shares
obtained by solicitors through solicitation, the

shareholders shall know
the information about the
number of shares obtained
by  solicitors through
solicitation, the number of]
shares represented by

number of shares represented by proxies and the
number of shares represented by shareholders

proxies and the number of]

attending the meeting by correspondence or

shares represented by

electronic means, and shall make an express

shareholders attending the
meeting by
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disclosure of the same at the place of the| correspondence or
shareholders meeting. electronic means. If The
In the event of a virtual sharcholders meeting,| Company hold
The Company shall upload the above meeting| shareholders meeting
materials to the virtual meeting platform at least| online only, the
30 minutes before the meeting starts, and keep| proceeding information

If matters put to a resolution at a sharcholders
meeting constitute material information under
applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation (or Taipei Exchange
Market) regulations, The Company shall upload
the content of such resolution to the MOPS within
the prescribed time period.

this information disclosed until the end of the

shall be disclosure on

meeting.
During The Company's virtual shareholders

virtual meeting platform.
2.Add paragraph 2,

meeting, when the meeting is called to order, the

shareholders attending the

total number of shares represented at the meeting

meeting online shall know

shall be disclosed on the virtual meeting

the total numbers of

platform. The same shall apply whenever the

shares represented at the

total number of shares represented at the meeting

meeting in sync with the

and a new tally of votes is released during the

physical meeting. When

meeting.
If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders

meeting constitute material information under
applicable laws or regulations or under Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation (or Taipei
Exchange Market) regulations, The Company
shall upload the content of such resolution to the
MOPS within the prescribed time period.

the meeting is called to
order, the total number of
shares represented at the
meeting shall be disclosed
on the virtual meeting
platform. The same shall
apply whenever the total
number of shares
represented at the meeting
and a new tally of votes is

released during the
meeting.

Article 19 1.Add the new article

In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,|2.Add  this  paragraph,

The Company shall disclose real-time results of]

Shareholders  in  the

votes and election immediately after the end of]
the voting session on the virtual meeting platform

virtual meeting shall have
real-time information of

according to the regulations, and this disclosure

votes and election, and

shall continue at least 15 minutes after the chair

they have sufficient time

has announced the meeting adjourned.

for the information.

Article 20
When The Company convenes a virtual-only

1.Add the new article
2.Add the paragraph, if the

shareholders meeting, both the chair and

event of virtual-only

secretary shall be in the same location, and the

shareholders meeting, the

chair shall declare the address of their location

chair shall declare the

when the meeting is called to order.

address of their location
when the meeting is
called to order, and both
the chair and secretary
shall be in the same
location.

Article 21
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,

1. Add the new article
2.Add paragraph 1,

The Company may offer a simple connection test

referring other companies

to shareholders prior to the meeting, and provide

outside Taiwan for virtual

relevant real-time services before and during the

meeting in practice, in the

meeting to help resolve communication technical

event of a  virtual

issues.
In the event of a virtual shareholders meeting,

shareholders meeting,
The Company may offer

when declaring the meeting open, the chair shall

a simple connection test

also declare, unless under a circumstance where

to_shareholders prior to

a meeting is not required to be postponed to or

the meeting, and provide

resumed at another time under Article 44-20,

relevant real-time

Paragraph 4 of the Regulations Governing the

services  before  and
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Administration of Shareholder Services of Public

during the meeting to

Companies, if the virtual meeting platform or

help resolve

participation in the virtual meeting is obstructed

communication technical

due to natural disasters, accidents or other force

issues.

majeure events before the chair has announced

3.Add paragraph 2, if the

the meeting adjourned, and the obstruction

virtual meeting platform

continues for more than 30 minutes, the meeting

or participation in the

shall be postponed to or resumed on another date

virtual meeting is

within five days, in which case Article 182 of the

obstructed due to natural

Company Act shall not apply.
For a meeting to be postponed or resumed as

disasters, accidents or
other  force  majeure

described in  the preceding paragraph,

events before the chair

shareholders who have not registered to

has announced the

participate in the affected sharecholders meeting

meeting adjourned, and

online shall not attend the postponed or resumed

the obstruction continues

session.
For a meeting to be postponed or resumed under

for more than 30 minutes,
the meeting shall be

the second paragraph, the number of shares

postponed to or resumed

represented by, and voting rights and election

on another date within

rights exercised by the shareholders who have

five days, in which case

registered to participate in the affected

Article 182  of the

shareholders meeting and have successfully

Company Act shall not

signed in the meeting, but do not attend the

apply. Shareholders, their

postpone or resumed session, at the affected

proxies _or _ solicitors’

shareholders meeting, shall be counted towards

personal errors for not

the total number of shares, number of voting

able to attend online are

rights and number of election rights represented

excluded.

at the postponed or resumed session.
During a postponed or resumed session of a

4.Add paragraph 3, for a

meeting to be postponed

shareholders meeting held under the second

paragraph, no further discussion or resolution is

or resumed as described
in the paragraph 2,

required for proposals for which votes have been

shareholders, their

cast and counted and results have been

proxies, solicitors who

announced, or list of elected directors and

have not registered to

SUpervisors.
When The Company convenes a hybrid

participate in the affected
shareholders meeting

shareholders meeting, and the virtual meeting

online shall not attend the

cannot continue as described in second

postponed or resumed

paragraph, if the total number of shares

session in accordance

represented at the meeting, after deducting those

with  Article  44-20,

represented by shareholders attending the virtual

paragraph 2 of]

shareholders meeting online, still meets the
minimum legal requirement for a shareholder

Regulations  Governing
the Administration  of]

meeting, then the shareholders meeting shall

Shareholder Services of]

continue, and not postponement or resumption

Public Companies.

thereof under the second paragraph is required.

Shareholders who have

Under the circumstances where a meeting should

registered in  physical

continue as in the preceding paragraph, the shares

meeting remain the same

represented by shareholders attending the virtual

way in the postponed or

meeting online shall be counted towards the total

resumed session.

number of shares represented by shareholders

5.Add paragraph 4, for a

present at the meeting, provided these

meeting to_be postponed

shareholders shall be deemed abstaining from

or resumed under the

voting on all proposals on meeting agenda of that

second paragraph, the

shareholders meeting.

When postponing or resuming a meeting

according to the second paragraph, The Company

number of shares
represented by, and voting
rights and election rights

shall handle the preparatory work based on the

exercised by the

date of the original shareholders meeting in

shareholders who have
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.

The Comparison Table of Amendments of the Proposed ordinance of shareholders meeting

Current Articles (2021.5.31)

Proposed Articles (2023.03.10)

(Explanatory note)

accordance with the requirements listed under

registered to participate in

Article 44-20, paragraph 7 of the Regulations

the affected shareholders

Governing the Administration of Shareholder
Services of Public Companies.

For dates or period set forth under Article 12,

meeting and have
successfully signed in the
meeting, but do not attend

second half, and Article 13, Paragraph 3 of]

the postpone or resumed

Regulations Governing the Use of Proxies for

session, at the affected

Attendance at Shareholder Meetings of Public

shareholders meeting,

Companies, and Article 44-5, paragraph 2,

shall be counted towards

Article 44-15. and Article 44-17, Paragraph 1 of]

the total number of shares,

the Regulations Governing the Administration of]

number of voting rights

Shareholder Services of Public Companies, The

and number of election

Company shall handle the matter based on the

rights represented at the

date of the shareholders meeting that is

postponed or resumed

postponed or resumed under the second

session .in _accordance

paragraph.

with  Article  44-20,
paragraph 3 of the
Regulations  Governing
the Administration  of]
Shareholder Services of]
Public Companies.

6.Add paragraph 5, a
postponed or resumed
session of a shareholders
meeting  held due to
disconnection _ of  the
original meeting, no
further  discussion _ or
resolution is required for
proposals for which votes
have been cast and
counted and results have
been announced, or list of
elected  directors and
Supervisors.

7.Add paragraph 6, when
The Company convenes a
hybrid shareholders
meeting, and the virtual
meeting cannot continue
as described in second
paragraph, if the total
number of shares
represented at the
meeting, after deducting
those  represented by
shareholders attending the
virtual shareholders
meeting online, still meets
the minimum legal
requirement for a
shareholder meeting, then
the shareholders meeting
shall continue, and not
postponement or
resumption thereof under
the second paragraph is
required.
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The Comparison Table of Amendments of the Proposed ordinance of shareholders meeting

Current Articles (2021.5.31)

Proposed Articles (2023.03.10)

(Explanatory note)

8.Add paragraph 7, Under

the circumstances where a
meeting should continue
as _in the preceding
paragraph, the shares
represented by
sharecholders attending the
virtual meeting online
shall be counted towards
the total number of shares
represented by
sharcholders present at
the meeting, provided
these sharecholders shall
be deemed abstaining
from voting on all
proposals on meeting
agenda of that
shareholders meeting
under  Article  44-20,
paragraph 5 of the
Regulations  Governing
the Administration  of]
Shareholder Services of]
Public Companies.

9.Add paragraph 8, when
postponing or resuming a
meeting according to the
second paragraph, The
Company shall handle the
preparatory work based
on the date of the original
shareholders meeting in
accordance  with  the
requirements listed under
Article 44-20, paragraph 7

of the Regulations
Governing the
Administration of]

Shareholder Services of]
Public Companies.

10. Add paragraph 9, due to
the postponed date of
virtual shareholders
meeting, the
information set forth
under Article 12, second
half, and Article 13
paragraph 3 of
Regulations Governing
the Use of Proxies for
Attendance at
Shareholder Meetings
of Public Companies,
and  Article 44-5,
paragraph 2, Article 44-
15, and Article 44-17,
paragraph 1 of the
Regulations Governing
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.
The Comparison Table of Amendments of the Proposed ordinance of shareholders meeting

Current Articles (2021.5.31)

Proposed Articles (2023.03.10)

(Explanatory note)

the Administration of]
Shareholder Services of
Public Companies may
disclosure on the date of
the shareholders
meeting that is
postponed or resumed
under the second
paragraph.

Article 22: (Handling of digital divide)

1.Add the new article

When convening a virtual-only shareholders|2.Concerning different
meeting, The Company shall provide appropriate| level of digital measures
alternative measures available to sharcholders| of shareholders, The
with  difficulties in attending a virtual] Company shall provide
shareholders meeting online. appropriate _ alternative

measures _available to

shareholders such as vote
rights in written notice or
equipment rental.

Article 19:These Rules shall take effect after
having been submitted to and approved by a
shareholders meeting. Subsequent amendments
thereto shall be effected in the same manner.

Article 23:These Rules shall take effect after
having been submitted to and approved by a
shareholders meeting. Subsequent amendments
thereto shall be effected in the same manner.

Adjust__Article No.

for

amendments this time.
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD.
The Comparison Table of Amendments of Proposed Procedure of Election of Directors

Appendix 8

Current Articles (2017.06.23)

Proposed Articles (2023.3.10)

Explanatory note

Article 6:

Elections of directors at the Company shall be
conducted in accordance with the candidate
nomination system and procedures set out in
Article 192-1 of the Company Act. To check the
candidate’s qualification, education and work

experience background and matters referring to

Articles 30 of the Company Act, any

certification of other documents shall not apply

additionally. The review results are for

shareholders reference for qualified directors.

When the number of directors falls below five
due to the dismissal of a director for any reason,
the Company shall hold a by-election to fill the
vacancy at its next shareholders meeting.

When the number of directors falls short by one
third of the total number prescribed in Articles
of Incorporation of the Company, the Company
shall call a special shareholders meeting within
60 days from the date of occurrence to hold a
by-election to fill the vacancies. When the
number of independent directors falls below that
required under the provision of Article 14-2,
paragraph 1 of the Securities and Exchange Act

or Standards for Determining Unsuitability for
TPEx Listing under Clause 8, Article 10,

paragraph 1 of the Taipei Exchange Rules

Governing the Review of Securities for Trading

on the TPEX, a by-election shall be held at the
next shareholders meeting to fill the vacancy.
When the independent directors are dismissed,
a special shareholders meeting shall be called
within 60 days from the date of occurrence to
hold a by-election to fill the vacancies.

Article 6:
Elections of directors at the Company shall be

To simplify the procedure of

conducted in accordance with the candidate
nomination system and procedures set out in

the candidate nomination of
directors under Article 192-1

Article 192-1 of the Company Act.

of the Company Act, amend

When the number of directors falls below five
due to the dismissal of a director for any reason,
the Company shall hold a by-election to fill the
vacancy at its next shareholders meeting. When
the number of directors falls short by one third
of the total number prescribed in Articles of]
Incorporation of the Company, The Company
shall call a special shareholders meeting within
60 days from the date of occurrence to hold a
by-election to fill the vacancies.

When the number of independent directors falls

first paragraph.

Amend paragraph 3. public

below that required under the provision of

companies shall have

Article 14-2, paragraph 1 of the Securities and

independent directors under a

Exchange Act, a by-election shall be held at the

notice No. 1070345233 dated

next shareholders meeting to fill the vacancy.

Dec 19, 2018 of Financial

When the independent directors are dismissed,
a special shareholders meeting shall be called
within 60 days from the date of occurrence to
hold a by-election to fill the vacancies.

Supervisory Commission.

Article 8

The Board of Directors shall prepare separate
ballots for directors in numbers corresponding
to the directors or supervisors to be elected. The
number of voting rights associated with each
ballot shall be specified on the ballots, which
shall then be distributed to the attending
shareholders at the shareholders meeting.
Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots
may be used instead of recording the names of]
voting shareholders.

Article 8
The Board of Directors or any person having

Shareholders may convene a

convening rights shall prepare separate ballots

special meeting themselves

for directors in numbers corresponding to the

in_accordance with Article

directors or supervisors to be elected. The

173 of the Company Act for

number of voting rights associated with each

certain circumstances. (When

ballot shall be specified on the ballots, which

Board of Directors may not

shall then be distributed to the attending

convene a meeting), adjust to

shareholders at the shareholders meeting.

comply with the paragraph.

Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots
may be used instead of recording the names of
voting shareholders.

Article 10

Before the election begins, the chair shall
appoint a number of persons with shareholder
status to perform the respective duties of vote
monitoring and counting personnel. The ballot
boxes shall be prepared by the Board of
Directors and publicly checked by the vote
monitoring personnel before voting

commences.

Article 10
Before the election begins, the chair shall

Shareholders may convene a

appoint a number of persons with shareholder

special meeting themselves

status to perform the respective duties of vote

in _accordance with Article

monitoring and counting personnel. The ballot

173 of the Company Act for

boxes shall be prepared by the Board of]

certain circumstances. (When

Directors or people who have a convening right

Board of Directors may not

and publicly checked by the vote monitoring

convene a meeting), adjust to

personnel before voting commences.

comply with the paragraph.
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The Comparison Table of Amendments of Proposed Procedure of Election of Directors

Current Articles (2017.06.23)

Proposed Articles (2023.3.10)

Explanatory note

Article 11
If a candidate is a shareholder, a voter must enter

Article 11
A voter must enter the candidate’s name or

the candidate's account name and shareholder
account number in the "candidate" column of]
the ballot; for a non-sha rechol cr, the ‘ot e
enter the candidate's full name and identity card
number. However, when the candidate is a
governmental organization or juristic-person
shareholder, the name of the governmental
organization or juristic-person shareholder shall
be entered in the column for the candidate's
account name in the ballot paper, or both the
name of the governmental organization or
juristic-person shareholder and the name of its
representative may be entered. When there are
multiple representatives, the names of each
respective representative shall be entered.

account name in the “candidate” column of the
ballot. However, when the candidate is a
governmental organization or juristic-person
shareholder, the name of the governmental
organization or juristic-person shareholder shall
be entered in the column for the candidate's
account name in the ballot paper, or both the
name of the governmental organization or
juristic-person shareholder and the name of its
representative may be entered. When there are
multiple representatives, the names of each
respective representative shall be entered.

To comply  with  the

adjustment of nomination

system of the candidates.

Article 12

A ballot is invalid under any of the following

circumstances:

1.The ballot was not prepared by the Board of]
Directors.

2.A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box.

3.The writing is unclear and indecipherable or
has been altered.

4.The candidate whose name is entered in the

Article 12

A ballot is invalid under any of the following
circumstances:

1.The ballot was not prepared by a person with

Shareholders may convene a

special meeting themselves

in _accordance with Article

the right to convene.
2.A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box.
3.The writing is unclear and indecipherable or
has been altered.
4.The candidate whose name is entered in the

173 of the Company Act for

certain circumstances. (When

Board of Directors may not

convene a meeting), adjust to

comply with first paragraph.

ballot is a shareholder, but the candidate's

ballot does not conform to the director

Also, due to an issuance of

account name and shareholder account

candidate list.

number do not conform with those given in the

5.0ther words or marks are entered in addition

shareholder register, or the candidate whose

to the number of voting rights allotted.

name is entered in the ballot is a non-

6.The ballot was written for two or more

the “Scope of mandatorily
adoption of candidate

nomination system for the
election of directors and

shareholder, and a cross-check shows that the

candidates.

candidate's name and identity card number do

not match.
5.0ther words or marks are entered in addition

to the candidate's account name or shareholder

account number (or identity card number) and

the number of voting rights allotted.
6.The name of the candidate entered in the

ballot is identical to that of another

shareholder, but no shareholder account

number or identity card number is provided in

the ballot to identify such individual.

supervisors”
(N0.1080311451) on April

25, 2019. since 2021,
elections of directors and
supervisor of public
companies shall be
conducted with the candidate
nomination _systems, and
shareholders shall elect from
the  director  nominated
candidates  adjust clause 4

and clause 5 and add clause 6
in this paragraph.
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Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

Appendix 9

Information on director candidates 112.04.17
Serial | account Name Shareholding Education/Experience Position held in the Company or other companies Remarks
. Ph.D. in Chemistry, UCLA, USA . Transwell Biotech Co., Ltd. Chairman
. Easywell Biomedicals Inc. Chairman . TAHO Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Chairman Independent
. Hao Li Biotech Consulting Co., Ltd. . Sunko Ink Co., Ltd. Independent Director director candidate
Managing Director . Taimed Biologics Inc. Independent Director /Served as an
. He Yu Management Consulting Co., Ltd . Obi Pharma, Inc. Independent Director independent
1 - L . 0 Chief Investment Officer . Easywell Biomedicals Inc Director director of the
ee, Shih-Jen . . .
. Silver Biotech Management, Inc. Managing . ITIC, Director company for three
Director . Amphastar Pharmaceuticals,In(California US) consective terms
. China Development Financial (CDF) Holding Director
Company Senior Assistant Manager, Investment . CapsoVision,Inc.(California US) Director
Department
. Ph.D. in accounting, Xiamen University . BDO joint CPA Firm, Partner CPA
. Master in accounting, Illinois University . First Bank, the juristic representative (Supervisor)
. Bachelor in public finance, National Chengchi Independent
Universit . .
2 ) Liv, Ke-Yi 0 . Accountirilg Research and Development director candidate
Foundation Committee member
. The National Federation of CPA Associations
Director
. Ph.D. in pharmacy, The University of Texas at . Taimed Biologics Inc., CEO
Austin . Biotheravision Inc., USA, Director
. Bachelor in pharmacy, National Taiwan . Oculgen Biotech Limited(China)., Director
Chang, Chin- University Ir'ldependent .
3 B Ming 0 . Allergan Inc, USA Executive Director, Small director candidate

Molecule Development and Global Core Team
Leader.

. Eli Lilly & Company, USA Senior Scientist.
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serial

account

number | number Name Shareholding Education/Experience Position held in the Company or other companies Remarks
. Ph.D. in Chemistry,University of Rochester,USA | . Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd
. Novatis , project leader. Chairman and Chief Strategy Officer
. Genelabs Technologies, Asia VP . QUEST Pharmaceutical service Taiwan Co., Ltd.
. QPS-QUALITIX Clinical Research Co., Ltd. The juristic representative (Director)
Chairman . Genovate Biotechnology(Cayman) Co., Ltd.
The juristic representative (Director)
. Uni Pharma Co., Ltd
Chairman and Chief Strategy Officer ;
4 s Chen, Jen 223,113 . Reber Genetics Co., Ltd. 2:13(;2;6
The juristic representative (Director)
. NaviFUS Corporation
Chairman and Chief Strategy Officer
. Genovate NaviFus (Australia) Pty.Ltd.
The juristic representative (Director)
. Savior Lifetech Coperation
The juristic representative (Director)
. Master in health policy and management, . Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd
Harvard University, USA General Manager
. Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd . Uni Pharma Co., Ltd
Chief International Affair Officer The juristic representative (Director)
Chu. Chia- . Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd . NaviFUS Corporation Director
5 0162 C’hen 109,423 Vice General Manager of New Drug The juristic representative (Director) candidate

Development

. Genovate NaviFus Inc.(GNI)

The juristic representative (Director)

. Genovate NaviFus (Australia) Pty.Ltd.

The juristic representative (Director)
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serial

account

number | number Name Shareholding Education/Experience Position held in the Company or other companies Remarks
National
Development .
Direct
0009 Fund, 29,221,785 N/A reeor
. candidate
Executive
Yuan
. Ph.D. in agriculture chemistry, National Taiwan | . Development Center for Biotechnology Vice
University President
6 . Development Center for Biotechnology . EirGenix Inc. The juristic representative (Director)
Chen, Hsiu- Director, office of CEO ; Director, office of Director
; Hui 0 planning and project management; R&D candidate
Researcher . Representative
. Yi-cheng Biotech Inc Scientist.
. Institute of Plant Biology, Academia Sinica
Post-doctoral Researcher.
National
Development Director
0009 Fund, 29,221,785 N/A .
. candidate
Executive
Yuan
. Ph.D. in biochemistry and biophysics, lowa State | . National YangMing ChiaoTung University
7 University, USA Distinguished Professor and Chief of Institute of
. PharmaEngine Inc Director Bio-Pharmaceutical Sciences DI
. . . L irector
Huang, Chi- . National Health Research Institute . Kaohsiung Medical University .
i Yin, 0 i Joint Distinguished Professor , Institute of candidate
g Vice Researcher g > Representative

. Chemistry and System Biology Deparment of

Stanford University Post-doctoral Researcher

Biochemistry .
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Appendix 10

Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
Non-Competition Information on Director candidates

112.04.17

Nominated candidates

Positions held in other companies

Lee, Shih-Jen

. Transwell Biotech Co., Ltd. Chairman

. TAHO Pharmaceuticals Ltd. Chairman

. Sunko Ink Co., Ltd. Independent Director

. Taimed Biologics Inc. Independent Director

. Obi Pharma, Inc. Independent Director

. Easywell Biomedicals Inc Director

. ITIC, Director

. Amphastar Pharmaceuticals,In(California US) Director
. CapsoVision,Inc.(California US) Director

Liu, Ke-Yi

. BDO joint CPA Firm, Partner CPA
. First Bank, the juristic representative(Supervisor)

Chang,Chin-Ming

. Taimed Biologics Inc., CEO
. Biotheravision Inc., USA, Director
. Oculgen Biotech Limited(China)., Director

Chen, Jen

. QUEST Pharmaceutical service Taiwan Co., Ltd.

The juristic representative (Director)

. Genovate Biotechnology(Cayman) Co., Ltd.

The juristic representative (Director)

. Uni Pharma Co., Ltd Chairman and Chief Strategy Officer

. Reber Genetics Co., Ltd. The juristic representative (Director)
. NaviFUS Corporation Chairman and Chief Strategy Officer

. Genovate NaviFus (Australia) Pty.Ltd.

The juristic representative (Director)

. Savior Lifetech Coperation The juristic representative (Director)

Chu, Chia-Chen

. Uni Pharma Co., Ltd

The juristic representative (Director)

. NaviFUS Corporation

The juristic representative (Director)

. Genovate NaviFus Inc.(GNI)

The juristic representative (Director)

. Genovate NaviFus (Australia) Pty.Ltd.

The juristic representative (Director)

National Development Fund,
Executive Yuan
Representative:
Chen, Hsiu-Hui

. Development Center for Biotechnology Vice President
. EirGenix Inc. The juristic representative (Director)

National Development Fund,
Executive Yuan
Representative:

Huang, Chi-Ying

. National YangMing Chiao Tung University

Distinguished Professor and Chief of Institute of Bio-
Pharmaceutical Sciences

. Kaohsiung Medical University

Joint Distinguished Professor , Institute of Biochemistry.
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APPENDIX 1

Articles of Incorporation of Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

Chapter 1 General Provisions

Article 1: The Company shall be incorporated, as a company limited by shares, under the Company Act of the
Republic of China, and its name shall be # & 2 = #1535 (> 3 * 2 @ in mandarin; its name shall
be Genovate Biotechnology Co.,Ltd. in English.

Article 2: The scope of business of The Company:

1. Research, develop, manufacture and retail any kinds of western pharmaceuticals, biologics,
active pharmaceutical ingredients and its intermediates.

2. Research, develop, produce and retail controlled released western pharmaceuticals.

3. Above products consulting service; export and import.

4 Manufacture and retail any kinds of western medicine, biologics and food.

5. Sales, import and export products on any kinds of western pharmaceuticals, active
pharmaceutical ingredients, antibiotics, serum, vaccine, medical equipment.

6. Clinical trial service on any kind of medicine.

7. General trade and resale products.

8. C802100 cosmetic manufacturing industry. (added)

Article 2-1: The Company may act as a guarantor.

Article 3: The headquarters of the Company is set in Hsinchu City and may set up a branch domestically or
overseas with approval from the Board of Directors in a resolution and from the government
authorities.

Article 4: (Deleted)

Chapter 2 Shares

Article 5: The total capital stock of the Company is NTD 1.5 billion divided into 150 million ordinary shares
of NTD 10 per share. The Board of Directors is authorized to issue these shares separately. Among
these shares, 15 million shares are reserved for stock warrants, preferred shares with warrants, or
corporate bonds with warrants.

Article 6: The Company’s shares shall be registered and numbered and shall bear the signatures or personal
seals by the director representing the Company, and be issued upon approvals from relevant
competent authorities in accordance with the law. The Company not printing its share certificate in
accordance with the provision of the preceding paragraph shall register the issued shares with a
centralized securities depositary enterprise and follow the regulations of that enterprise.

Article 7: For other affairs related to stocks, it shall be governed by Regulations Governing the
Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies.

Article 8: Assignment/transfer of shares shall not be set up as a defense against the issuing company, unless
name/title and residence/domicile of the assignee/transferee have been recorded in the shareholders’
roster.

Article 9: The entries in The Company’s shareholders’ roster shall not be altered within 60 days prior to the
convening date of a regular shareholders meeting, or within 30 days prior to the convening date of
a special shareholders meeting, or 5 days before the base day scheduled by the Company for
distributing dividends, dividends, or other benefits.

Chapter 3 Shareholders Meeting
Article 10: The shareholders meeting shall be two kinds
1. The regular meeting of shareholders shall be convened within six months after close of each
fiscal year.
2. Special meeting of shareholders shall be held when necessary and referred to the competent
authority.

Article 11: When the shareholders meeting was convened by the Board of Directors, the shareholders meeting
shall be presided by the Chairman of the Board of Directors. If the Chairman is absent or is unable
to exercise the duties for certain reasons, the Chairman may designate the managing director to
act on his/her behalf, if there is no managing director, one of the directors may be designated to
act on his/her behalf. Where the Chairman does not designate a proxy, the managing director or
directors may elect a person among themselves to act on behalf of the Chairman. When the
shareholders meeting was convened by other persons who have the convening right, the
shareholders meeting shall be presided by the convener.
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Article 12: A notice to convene a regular meeting of shareholders shall be given to each shareholder no later
than 30 days prior to the scheduled meeting date. In case a public company intends to convene a
special meeting of shareholders, a meeting notice shall be given to each shareholder no later than
15 days prior to the scheduled meeting date.

Article 13: A shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend a shareholders’ meeting in his/her/its behalf by
executing a power of attorney stating there in the scope of power authorized to the proxy. However,
the Company shall comply with Article 177 of the Company Act, otherwise stipulated by the
competent authority in charge of securities affairs.

Article 14: Except in the circumstances otherwise provided for in this Act, a shareholder shall have one voting
power in respect of each share in his/her/its possession.

The shares shall have no voting power under any of the circumstances referring to Article 179 of
the Company Act.

Article 15: Unless otherwise provided by the competent authorities, a resolution of a shareholders’meeting
shall be adopted with a consent of the shareholders representing a majority of the voting rights at
the meeting attended by shareholders holding a majority of the total issued shares. However, the
following circumstances shall be approved by the majority of the total issued shares with a consent
of shareholders representing two-third of the voting rights.

1. Acquisition or merging other domestic and foreign companies.
2. Canceled or invalidated, splitted by the central competent authority

Article 15-1: The proposal to withdraw public offering shall resolve on shareholders meeting and cannot

adjust during the procedure of the over-the counter market or public offering market.

Chapter 4: Directors, Board of Directors, Functional Committees and Managers

Article 16: The Company shall have seven to nine Directors, who shall be elected from legally competent
persons at the shareholders meeting and hold office for three years; re-elected Directors may serve
consecutive terms. The manner of nomination and other related matters shall comply with the
Company Act and Security and Exchange Act. There shall be at least two independent Directors
among the number of Directors to be elected referred to in the preceding paragraph, and the
independent Directors shall represent at least one-fifth of the Board. The independent Directors
shall be elected at the shareholders meeting using the candidate nomination system and from
among a list of candidates. The restrictions on professional qualifications, share ownership,
concurrent positions held, the manner of nomination, the election of the independent Directors,
and other related matters shall comply with applicable laws and regulations prescribed by the
competent authority. Total shares holding percentage of all directors shall comply with the
competent authorities.

Article 16-1: The Company shall set up an Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, and other functional
committees. The Audit Committee is composed of all Independent Directors. The exercise of the
duty by members of the Audit Committee, Articles of the Committee, responsibilities and other
regulations are in compliance with the regulations of the competent authority of securities and
the Company regulations. Remuneration matters shall authorize the Board of Directors to be in
charge.

Article 17: The Board of Directors are organized by Directors. Except duties complied with the Company
Act, the duties in following circumstances shall not exercise without two-thirds of the directors’
approval.

1. The contract price over a certain amount (authorize the Board of Directors to decide)

2. Essential non-approval capital expenditure budget over a certain amount (authorize the Board
of Directors to decide). The expenditure shall not be splitted or separated into details for the
same purpose.

3. Branches established or dissolved

4. Invest outside the business, acquire, or merge other business

5. All or partial important assets disposal for pawn, resale, rent, pledge or other disposal
exercise.

6. Transaction over a certain amount (authorize the Board of Directors to decide) between
relative companies, shareholders who have exceeding 10% of total shares, directors,
supervisors and their first-degree relatives.

7. Appoint or dismiss a general manager
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8. Surplus distribution or deficit makeup review and approval

9. Budge and final account approval

10. A plan on capital increase or decrease

11. Amendment on Articles of Incorporation of the Company

12. Approval on operation plan, new factory set-up, original factory expansion

Article 18: In case a company has no managing directors, the Board of Directors shall elect a chairman of the

Article 19:

Article 20:

Article 21:
Article 22:

board directors from among the directors by a majority vote at a meeting attended by over two-

thirds of the directors, and may also elect in the same manner a vice chairman of the board.
Except as otherwise stated in the Security Exchange Act or in the Company Act or other laws, the
Board of Directors meeting shall be convened by the chairman. A resolution on a matter at a Board
of Directors meeting requires the approval of a majority of the directors present at the meeting that
shall be attended by a majority of all directors except not complied with the Company Act or
regulations in Article 17 in this paragraph.
In case the chairman of the Board of Directors is on leave or absent or cannot exercise his power
and authority for any cause, the vice chairman shall act on his behalf. In case there is no vice
chairman, or the vice chairman is also on leave or absent or unable to exercise his power and
authority for any cause, the chairman of the Board of Directors shall designate one of the managing
directors, or where there is no managing directors, one of the directors to act on his behalf. The
proceeding proxy is for one director. The meeting is held via visual communication network,
directors participate via visual communication network as attending in person.
(Deleted)
The directors are remunerated regularly, authorizing the Board of Directors to agree on the level of
their participation in the Company's operations and the value of their contributions, and with
reference to the standard of the same trade concerned. The Board of Directors determine Directors'
transportation allowance. The Company may obtain directors liability insurance with respect to
liabilities resulting from exercising their duties during their terms of directorship.

Article 23: The Company may have one general manager and the appointment and discharge and the

Article 24:

remuneration of the managerial personnel shall be decided in accordance with Article 29 of the
Company Act. General manager shall exercise as the resolution of the Board of Directors. The
Company may have several vice general managers to assist the general manager for the operation.
The appointment and discharge and the remuneration of vice general managers are applied via the
general manager and in accordance with Article 29 of the Company Act.

When the number of vacancies in the Board of Directors of a company equals to one third of the
total number of directors, the Board of Directors shall call, within 60 days, a special meeting of
shareholders to elect succeeding directors to fill the vacancies.

Chapter 5 Accountant

Article 25:
Article 26:

Article 27:

Article 28:

The Company’s fiscal year starts from January 1 to December 31 of the same year.

At the end of each fiscal year, Thes Board of Directors shall prepare the following documents in

accordance with Article 228 of the Company Act, and submit the documents to routine shareholders

meeting to be recognized.

1. Business report

2. Financial statements

3. Proposals for distribution of earnings or makeup for the deficit.

The distribution of the dividends shall be effected in proportion to the number of shares held by

each shareholder accordingly. The Company shall not pay dividends, unless its losses shall have

been covered and a legal reserve shall have been set aside

The Company, when allocating its surplus profits shall follow the distributions

1. Pay all taxes and dues

2. Make up the deficit

3. Set aside ten percent of said profits as legal reserve. Where such legal reserve amounts to the
total paid-in capital, this provision shall not apply. Where the Competent Authority deems
necessary, it may set aside a certain proportion of its earnings as special reserve.

4. If there is a surplus still, the Board of Directors will propose the surplus distribution case with
the unpaid profits accumulation of undistributed surplus last year to the shareholders meeting
for resolution.

The Company authorizes the distributable dividends and dividends in whole or in part may be paid
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in cash after a resolution has been adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of the Board of Directors
attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors; and in addition thereto a report of such
distribution shall be submitted to the sharecholders meeting. It may not adopt the resolution of the
shareholders meeting in this provision.

Article 28-1: Once the Company has made profits in a year, then no less than 10% of the profits should be
allocated to employee compensation and no more than 2% of the profits should be allocated for
Directors/Supervisors compensation. However, the Company shall make up the deficit when
accumulated losses still. The said employee compensation can be paid in the form of stock or
cash, and the recipient of the payment include employees of subordinate companies qualifying
the conditions set by certain conditions. The profits in the preceding paragraph indicate the
before-tax profit deduct employee compensation and Directors/ Supervisors compensation. The
compensation distribution shall be approved by a majority vote at a meeting of the Board of
Directors attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors; and in addition thereto a report
of such distribution shall be submitted to the shareholders meeting.

Article 28-2: Legal surplus reserve and paid-in capital in accordance with Article 241 of the Company Act in
whole or in part may be paid in cash after a resolution has been adopted by a majority vote at a
meeting of the Board of Directors attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors; and in
addition thereto a report of such distribution shall be submitted to the shareholders meeting.

Article 29: The dividend policy of the Company shall meet business strategy, short-long-term investment plan,
capital budget, internal and external environments and profit condition in the current fiscal year.
The Board of Directors may purpose surplus distribution and submit the shareholders meeting to
resolve. The distribution shall be reasonable and fair to no less than 50% of distributable surplus
as dividend. Among the dividends, the dividend paid in cash shall be no less than 10%.

Article 30: The roster of shareholders for distribution of Shareholders’ dividend shall be on the basis of 5 days

prior to the resolution of the distribution.

Article 31: The investment amount of the Company for outside companies may exceed forty percent of paid-

in capital.

Chapter 6: Others

Article 32: The Company’s organization regulation and handbook shall be set additionally.

Article 33: Matters not specified in this Articles of Incorporation shall be governed by the Company Act.

Article 34: The original Articles of Incorporation were adopted on Feb 14, 1993. 1st Amended
thereafter on Aug 17, 1993, 2nd Amended on Aug 28, 1995, 3rd Amended on June 24,
1996, 4th Amended on June 5, 1997, 5th Amended on Nov 20, 1997, 6th Amended on June,
7, 1999, 7th Amended on May 5, 2000, 8th Amended on May 25, 2001, 9th Amended on
June 27, 2002, 10th Amended on June 17, 2005, 11th Amended on June 28, 2006, 12th
Amended on June 22, 2007, 13th Amended on June 18, 2009, 14th Amended on June 22,
2010, 15th Amended on June 24, 2013, 16th Amended on May 31, 2016, 17th Amended
on June 23, 2017, 18th Amended on May 30, 2019, 19th Amended on May 29, 2020.

Genovate Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
Representative: Chen, Jen

60



APPENDIX 2

Genovate Version 5

Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD. No. G0-2002

the Ordinance of Shareholders Meetings Date 20210531

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

To establish a strong governance system and sound supervisory capabilities for the Company's
shareholders meetings, and to strengthen management capabilities, these Rules are adopted pursuant to
Article 5 of the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies.
The rules of procedures for the Company’s shareholders meetings, except as otherwise provided by law,
regulation, or the articles of incorporation, shall be as provided in these Rules.

(Convening shareholders meetings and shareholders meeting notices)

Unless otherwise provided by law or regulation, The Company's shareholders meetings shall be
convened by the Board of Directors.

The Company shall prepare electronic versions of the shareholders meeting notice and proxy forms, and
the origins of and explanatory materials relating to all proposals, including proposals for ratification,
matters for deliberation, or the election or dismissal of directors or supervisors, and upload them to the
Market Observation Post System (MOPS) before 30 days before the date of a regular shareholders
meeting or before 15 days before the date of a special shareholders meeting. The Company shall prepare
electronic versions of the shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials and upload
them to the MOPS before 21 days before the date of the regular shareholders meeting or before 15 days
before the date of the special shareholders meeting. The Company shall also have prepared the
shareholders meeting agenda and supplemental meeting materials and made them available for review
by shareholders at any time. The meeting agenda and supplemental materials shall also be displayed at
The Company and the professional shareholder services agent designated thereby and also shall be
distributed on-site at the meeting.

The reasons for convening a shareholders meeting shall be specified in the meeting notice and public
announcement. With the consent of the addressee, the meeting notice may be given in electronic form.
Election or dismissal of directors or supervisors, amendments to the articles of incorporation, reduction
of capital, application for the approval of ceasing its status as a public company, approval of competing
with the company by directors, surplus profit distributed in the form of new shares, reserve distributed
in the form of new shares, the dissolution, merger, or demerger of the corporation, or any matter under
Article 185, paragraph 1 of the Company Act, Articles 26-1 and 43-6 of the Securities Exchange Act,
Articles 56-1 and 60-2 of the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by
Securities Issuers shall be set out and the essential contents explained in the notice of the reasons for
convening the shareholders meeting.

None of the above matters may be raised by an extraordinary motion.

Where re-election of all directors and supervisors as well as their inauguration date is stated in the notice
of the reasons for convening the shareholders meeting, after the completion of the re-election in said
meeting such inauguration date may not be altered by any extraordinary motion or otherwise in the same
meeting.

A shareholder holding one percent or more of the total number of issued shares may submit to The
Company a proposal for discussion at a regular shareholders meeting. The number of items so proposed
is limited to one only, and no proposal containing more than one item will be included in the meeting
agenda. When the circumstances of any subparagraph of Article 172-1, paragraph 4 of the Company Act
apply to a proposal put forward by a shareholder, the Board of Directors may exclude it from the agenda.
A shareholder may propose a recommendation for urging the corporation to promote public interests or
fulfill its social responsibilities, provided procedurally the number of items so proposed is limited only
to one in accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act, and no proposal containing more than one
item will be included in the meeting agenda.

Prior to the book closure date before a regular shareholders meeting is held, The Company shall publicly
announce its acceptance of shareholder proposals in writing or electronically, and the location and time
period for their submission; the period for submission of shareholder proposals may not be less than 10
days.

Shareholder-submitted proposals are limited to 300 words, and no proposal containing more than 300
words will be included in the meeting agenda. The shareholder making the proposal shall be present in
person or by proxy at the regular shareholders meeting and take part in discussion of the proposal.
Prior to the date for issuance of notice of a shareholders meeting, The Company shall inform the
shareholders who submitted proposals of the proposal screening results, and shall list in the meeting
notice the proposals that conform to the provisions of this article. At the shareholders meeting the Board
of Directors shall explain the reasons for exclusion of any shareholder proposals not included in the
agenda.
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Article 4: For each shareholders meeting, a shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend the meeting by providing
the proxy form issued by The Company and stating the scope of the proxy's authorization.
A shareholder may issue only one proxy form and appoint only one proxy for any given shareholders
meeting, and shall deliver the proxy form to The Company before five days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When duplicate proxy forms are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail
unless a declaration is made to cancel the previous proxy appointment.
After a proxy form has been delivered to The Company, if the shareholder intends to attend the meeting
in person or to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronically, a written notice of proxy
cancellation shall be submitted to The Company before two business days before the meeting date. If the
cancellation notice is submitted after that time, votes cast at the meeting by the proxy shall prevail.
Article 5: (Principles determining the time and place of a shareholders meeting)
The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be the premises of The Company, or a place easily accessible
to shareholders and suitable for a shareholders meeting. The meeting may begin no earlier than 9 a.m.
and no later than 3 p.m. Full consideration shall be given to the opinions of the independent directors
with respect to the place and time of the meeting.
Article 6: (Preparation of documents such as the attendance book)
The Company shall specify in its shareholders meeting notices the time during which attendance
registrations for shareholders) will be accepted, the place to register for attendance, and other matters for
attention.
The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted, as stated in the preceding
paragraph, shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting commences. The place at which
attendance registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient number of suitable
personnel assigned to handle the registrations.
Shareholders or proxies (collectively "shareholders") shall attend shareholders meetings based on
attendance cards, sign-in cards, or other certificates of attendance. The Company may not arbitrarily add
requirements for other documents beyond those showing eligibility to attend presented by shareholders.
Solicitors soliciting proxy forms shall also bring identification documents for verification.
The Company shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or attending
shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in.
The Company shall furnish attending shareholders with the meeting agenda book, annual report,
attendance card, speaker's slips, voting slips, and other meeting materials. Where there is an election of
directors or supervisors, pre-printed ballots shall also be furnished. When the government or a juristic
person is a shareholder, it may be represented by more than one representative at a shareholders meeting.
When a juristic person is appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to represent it
in the meeting.
Article 7: (The chair and non-voting participants of a shareholders meeting)
If a shareholders meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be chaired by the
chairperson of the board. When the chairperson of the board is on leave or for any reason unable to
exercise the powers of the chairperson, the vice chairperson shall act in place of the chairperson; if there
is no vice chairperson or the vice chairperson also is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the
powers of the vice chairperson, the chairperson shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as chair,
or, if there are no managing directors, one of the directors shall be appointed to act as chair. Where the
chairperson does not make such a designation, the managing directors or the directors shall select from
among themselves one person to serve as chair.
When a managing director or a director serves as chair, as referred to in the preceding paragraph, the
managing director or director shall be one who has held that position for six months or more and who
understands the financial and business conditions of the company. The same shall be true for a
representative of a juristic person director that serves as chair.
It is advisable that sharecholders meetings convened by the Board of Directors be chaired by the
chairperson of the board in person and attended by a majority of the directors, at least one supervisor in
person, and at least one member of each functional committee on behalf of the committee. The attendance
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.
If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than the Board of
Directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. When there are two or more such convening
parties, they shall mutually select a chair from among themselves.
The Company may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons retained by it to
attend a shareholders meeting in a non-voting capacity.
Article 8: (Documentation of a shareholders meeting by audio or video)
The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations, shall make an
uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration procedure, the proceedings of the shareholders
meeting, and the voting and vote counting procedures.
The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least one year. If, however, a
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shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the recording shall be retained
until the conclusion of the litigation.

Article 9: Attendance at shareholders meetings shall be calculated based on numbers of shares. The number of
shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares indicated by the attendance book and sign-
in cards handed in plus the number of shares whose voting rights are exercised by correspondence or
electronically.

The chair shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time and disclose information
concerning the number of nonvoting shares and number of shares represented by shareholders attending
the meeting. However, when the attending shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of
issued shares, the chair may announce a postponement, provided that no more than two such
postponements, for a combined total of no more than one hour, may be made. If the quorum is not met
after two postponements and the attending shareholders still represent less than one third of the total
number of issued shares, the chair shall declare the meeting adjourned.

If the quorum is not met after two postponements as referred to in the preceding paragraph, but the
attending shareholders represent one third or more of the total number of issued shares, a tentative
resolution may be adopted pursuant to Article 175, paragraph 1 of the Company Act; all shareholders shall
be notified of the tentative resolution and another sharcholders meeting shall be convened within one
month.

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of the total
number of issued shares, the chair may resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the shareholders
meeting pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act.

Article 10: (Discussion of proposals)

If a shareholders meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda shall be set by the
Board of Directors. Votes shall be cast on each separate proposal in the agenda (including extraordinary
motions and amendments to the original proposals set out in the agenda). The meeting shall proceed in
the order set by the agenda, which may not be changed without a resolution of the shareholders meeting.
The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders meeting convened
by a party with the power to convene that is not the Board of Directors.

The chair may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on the meeting
agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extraordinary motions), except by a resolution of
the shareholders meeting. If the chair declares the meeting adjourned in violation of the rules of
procedure, the other members of the board of directors shall promptly assist the attending shareholders
in electing a new chair in accordance with statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the votes
represented by the attending shareholders, and then continue the meeting.

The chair shall allow ample opportunity during the meeting for explanation and discussion of proposals
and of amendments or extraordinary motions put forward by the shareholders; when the chair is of the
opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the chair may announce the
discussion closed, call for a vote, and schedule sufficient time for voting.

Article 11: (Shareholder speech)

Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker's slip the subject of the speech,
his/her shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name. The order in
which shareholders speak will be set by the chair.

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker's slip but does not actually speak shall be
deemed to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond to the subject given
on the speaker's slip, the spoken content shall prevail.

Except with the consent of the chair, a sharecholder may not speak more than twice on the same
proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. If the shareholder's speech violates the rules
or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the chair may terminate the speech.

When an attending shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless they
have sought and obtained the consent of the chair and the shareholder that has the floor; the chair shall
stop any violation.

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders
meeting, only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal.

After an attending shareholder has spoken, the chair may respond in person or direct relevant personnel
to respond.

Article 12: (Calculation of voting shares and recusal system)

Voting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based on the number of shares.

With respect to resolutions of shareholders meetings, the number of shares held by a shareholder with no voting
rights shall not be calculated as part of the total number of issued shares.

When a shareholder is an interested party in relation to an agenda item, and there is the likelihood that such a
relationship would prejudice the interests of The Company, that shareholder may not vote on that item, and may
not exercise voting rights as proxy for any other shareholder.

The number of shares for which voting rights may not be exercised under the preceding paragraph shall not be
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Article 13:

Article 14:

Article 15:

Article 16:

calculated as part of the voting rights represented by attending shareholders.

With the exception of a trust enterprise or a shareholder services agent approved by the competent securities
authority, when one person is concurrently appointed as proxy by two or more shareholders, the voting rights
represented by that proxy may not exceed three percent of the voting rights represented by the total number of
issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that percentage shall not be included in
the calculation.

A shareholder shall be entitled to one vote for each share held, except when the shares are restricted shares or are
deemed non-voting shares under Article 179, paragraph 2 of the Company Act.

When The Company holds a shareholder meeting, it shall adopt exercise of voting rights by electronic means and
may adopt exercise of voting rights by correspondence. When voting rights are exercised by correspondence or
electronic means, the method of exercise shall be specified in the shareholders meeting notice. A shareholder
exercising voting rights by correspondence or electronic means will be deemed to have attended the meeting in
person, but to have waived his/her rights with respect to the extraordinary motions and amendments to original
proposals of that meeting; it is therefore advisable that The Company avoid the submission of extraordinary
motions and amendments to original proposals.

A shareholder intending to exercise voting rights by correspondence or electronic means under the preceding
paragraph shall deliver a written declaration of intent to The Company before two days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When duplicate declarations of intent are delivered, the one received earliest shall prevail,
except when a declaration is made to cancel the earlier declaration of intent.

After a shareholder has exercised voting rights by correspondence or electronic means, in the event the shareholder
intends to attend the shareholders meeting in person or online, a written declaration of intent to retract the voting
rights already exercised under the preceding paragraph shall be made known to The Company, by the same means
by which the voting rights were exercised, before two business days before the date of the sharcholders meeting.
If the notice of retraction is submitted after that time, the voting rights already exercised by correspondence or
electronic means shall prevail. When a shareholder has exercised voting rights both by correspondence or
electronic means and by appointing a proxy to attend a shareholders meeting, the voting rights exercised by the
proxy in the meeting shall prevail.

Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in The Company's articles of incorporation, the passage of
a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the voting rights represented by the attending
shareholders. At the time of a vote, for each proposal, the chair or a person designated by the chair shall first
announce the total number of voting rights represented by the attending shareholders, followed by a poll of the
shareholders. After the conclusion of the meeting, on the same day it is held, the results for each proposal, based
on the numbers of votes for and against and the number of abstentions, shall be entered into the MOPS.

When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the chair shall present the amended or alternative
proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in which they will be put to a vote. When any
one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected, and no further voting shall be required.
Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the chair, provided that
all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of The Company.

Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in public at the place of the
shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the results of the voting, including the
statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a record made of the vote.
(Election of directors and supervisors)

The election of directors or supervisors at a shareholders meeting shall be held in accordance with the
applicable election and appointment rules adopted by The Company, and the voting results shall be
announced on-site immediately, including the names of those elected as directors and supervisors and
the numbers of votes with which they were elected, and the names of directors and supervisors not
elected and number of votes they received.

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the signatures of
the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least one year. If, however, a sharcholder
files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the ballots shall be retained until the
conclusion of the litigation.

Matters relating to the resolutions of a shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.
The meeting minutes shall be signed or sealed by the chair of the meeting and a copy distributed to each
shareholder within 20 days after the conclusion of the meeting. The meeting minutes may be produced
and distributed in electronic form.

The Company may distribute the meeting minutes of the preceding paragraph by means of a public
announcement made through the MOPS.

The meeting minutes shall accurately record the year, month, day, and place of the meeting, the chair's
full name, the methods by which resolutions were adopted, and a summary of the deliberations and their
voting results (including the number of voting rights), and disclose the number of voting rights won by
each candidate in the event of an election of directors or supervisors. The minutes shall be retained for
the duration of the existence of The Company.

(Public disclosure)

On the day of a shareholders meeting, The Company shall compile in the prescribed format a statistical
statement of the number of shares obtained by solicitors through solicitation, the number of shares
represented by proxies, and shall make an express disclosure of the same at the place of the shareholders
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meeting.
If matters put to a resolution at a shareholders meeting constitute material information under applicable
laws or regulations or under Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation (or Taipei Exchange Market)
regulations, The Company shall upload the content of such resolution to the MOPS within the prescribed
time period.

Article 17: (Maintaining order at the meeting place)
Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders meeting shall wear identification cards or arm
bands.
The chair may direct the proctors or security personnel to help maintain order at the meeting place.
When proctors or security personnel help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an
identification card or armband bearing the word "Proctor."
At the place of a shareholders meeting, if a shareholder attempts to speak through any device other than
the public address equipment set up by The Company, the chair may prevent the shareholder from doing
SO.
When a shareholder violates the rules of procedure and defies the chair's correction, obstructing the
proceedings and refusing to heed calls to stop, the chair may direct the proctors or security personnel
to escort the shareholder from the meeting.

Article 18: (Recess and resumption of a shareholders meeting)
When a meeting is in progress, the chair may announce a break based on time considerations. If a force
majeure event occurs, the chair may rule the meeting temporarily suspended and announce a time when,
in view of the circumstances, the meeting will be resumed.
If the meeting venue is no longer available for continued use and not all of the items (including
extraordinary motions) on the meeting agenda have been addressed, the shareholders meeting may
adopt a resolution to resume the meeting at another venue.
A resolution may be adopted at a shareholders meeting to defer or resume the meeting within five days
in accordance with Article 182 of the Company Act.

Article 19: These Rules shall take effect after having been submitted to and approved by a shareholders meeting.
Subsequent amendments thereto shall be effected in the same manner.
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APPENDIX 3

Genovate Version 3

Genovate Biotechnology Co., LTD. No. GO0-2003

Procedure of Election of Directors
Date 2017.06.23

Article 1:

Article 2:

Article 3:

Article 4:
Article 5:

Article 6:

To ensure a just, fair, and open election of directors, these Procedures are adopted pursuant to
Articles 21 and 41 of the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies.
Except as otherwise provided by law and regulation or by this Corporation's articles of
incorporation, elections of directors shall be conducted in accordance with these Procedures.
The overall composition of the board of directors shall be taken into consideration in the
selection of this Corporation's directors. The composition of the board of directors shall be
determined by taking diversity into consideration and formulating an appropriate policy on
diversity based on the company's business operations, operating dynamics, and development
needs. It is advisable that the policy include, without being limited to, the following two
general standards:
1. Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture.
2. Professional knowledge and skills:A professional background (e.g., law, accounting,
industry, finance, marketing, technology), professional skills, and industry experience..
Each board member shall have the necessary knowledge, skill, and experience to perform
their duties; the abilities that must be present in the board as a whole are as follows:
. The ability to make judgments about operations.
. Accounting and financial analysis ability.
. Business management ability.
. Crisis management ability.
. Knowledge of the industry.
. An international market perspective.
. Leadership ability.
8. Decision-making ability.
More than half of the directors shall be persons who have neither a spousal relationship nor
a relationship within the second degree of kinship with any other director.
The board of directors of the Company shall consider adjusting its composition based on the
results of performance evaluation.
(delete)
The qualifications for the independent directors of the Company shall comply with Articles 2,
3, and 4 of the Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance
Matters for Public Companies.
The election of independent directors of this Corporation shall comply with Articles 5, 6, 7,
8, and 9 of the Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and
Compliance Matters for Public Companies, and shall be conducted in accordance with Article
24 of the Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies.
Elections of directors at this Corporation shall be conducted in accordance with the candidate
nomination system and procedures set out in Article 192-1 of the Company Act. To check the
candidates qualification, education and work experience background and matters referring to
Articles 30 of the Company Act, any certification of other documents shall not apply
additionally. The review results are for shareholders reference for qualified directors.
When the number of directors falls below five due to the dismissal of a director for any reason,
the Company shall hold a by-election to fill the vacancy at its next shareholders meeting.
When the number of directors falls short by one third of the total number prescribed in this
Company’s articles of incorporation, this Company shall call a special shareholders meeting
within 60 days from the date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the vacancies.
When the number of independent directors falls below that required under the provision of
Article 14-2, paragraph 1 of the Securities and Exchange Act or Standards for Determining
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Unsuitability for TPEx Listing under Clause 8, Article 10, Paragraph 1 of the Taipei Exchange
Rules Governing the Review of Securities for Trading on the TPEx, a by-election shall be
held at the next shareholders meeting to fill the vacancy. When the independent directors are
dismissed en masse, a special shareholders meeting shall be called within 60 days from the
date of occurrence to hold a by-election to fill the vacancies.

Article 7: The cumulative voting method shall be used for election of the directors at the Company. Each

Article 8:

share will have voting rights in number equal to the directors to be elected, and may be cast
for a single candidate or split among multiple candidates.

The board of directors shall prepare separate ballots for directors in numbers corresponding
to the directors or supervisors to be elected. The number of voting rights associated with each
ballot shall be specified on the ballots, which shall then be distributed to the attending
shareholders at the shareholders meeting. Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots may
be used instead of recording the names of voting shareholders.

Article 9: The number of directors will be as specified in the Company's articles of incorporation, with

voting rights separately calculated for independent and non-independent director positions.
Those receiving ballots representing the highest numbers of voting rights will be elected
sequentially according to their respective numbers of votes. When two or more persons
receive the same number of votes, thus exceeding the specified number of positions, they shall
draw lots to determine the winner, with the chair drawing lots on behalf of any person not in
attendance.

Article 10: Before the election begins, the chair shall appoint a number of persons with shareholder

status to perform the respective duties of vote monitoring and counting personnel. The
ballot boxes shall be prepared by the board of directors and publicly checked by the vote
monitoring personnel before voting commences.

Article 11: If a candidate is a shareholder, a voter must enter the candidate's account name and

shareholder account number in the "candidate" column of the ballot; for a non-shareholder,
the voter shall enter the candidate's full name and identity card number. However, when the
candidate is a governmental organization or juristic-person shareholder, the name of the
governmental organization or juristic-person shareholder shall be entered in the column for
the candidate's account name in the ballot paper, or both the name of the governmental
organization or juristic-person shareholder and the name of its representative may be
entered. When there are multiple representatives, the names of each respective
representative shall be entered.

Article 12: A ballot is invalid under any of the following circumstances:

1. The ballot was not prepared by a person with the right to convene.

2. A blank ballot is placed in the ballot box.

3. The writing is unclear and indecipherable or has been altered.

4. The candidate whose name is entered in the ballot does not conform to the director
candidate list.

5. Other words or marks are entered in addition to the number of voting rights allotted.

6. The writing name of a candidate is the same as other shareholders but no account number
or ID to identify.

Article 13: The voting rights shall be calculated on site immediately after the end of the poll, and the

results of the calculation, including the list of persons elected as directors and the numbers
of votes with which they were elected, shall be announced by the chair on the site.

The ballots for the election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the
signatures of the monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least one year. If,
however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Act, the ballots
shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.

Article 14: The board of directors of the Company shall issue notifications to the persons elected as

directors.

Article 15: These Procedures, and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after approval by a

shareholders meeting.

67



APPENDIX 4
Shareholding of Directors

1.The Minimum required shareholding and shareholding on the shareholders' rooster of all directors

Position Required shareholding Current shareholding

Directors 8,000,000 29,554,321

Note 1: Book closure date: March 31, 2023

Note 2: The Company has elected two or more independent directors, the share ownership figures
calculated at the rates set forth by the law for all directors and supervisors other than the
independent directors and shall be decreased by 20 percent under Article 2 of Rules and
Review Procedures for Director and Supervisor Share Ownership Ratios at Public
Companies.

Note 3: The Company has set up an audit committee, the provisions on the minimum percentage
requirements for the shareholding of supervisors shall not apply.

2.The number of shares and shareholding ratio (%) of all directors

Position Name Shares shareholding ratio
(%)
Directors |Chen, Jen 223,113 0.20%
National Development Fund, Executive Yuan
Directors |Representative: 29,221,785 26.72%
Lin, Chun-Mao -~ Liu, Te-Jen
Directors |Chu, Chia-Chen 109,423 0.10%
Independent | . o vi 0 0%
Director
I ]
ndgpendent Lee, Shih-Jen 0 0%
Director
Inde_pendent Chen, Teh-Fang 0 0%
Director
Total 29,554,321 27.02%

Note : Book closure date: March 31, 2023
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